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VISION STATEMENT, MISSION STATEMENT AND Annual Report 2025
CORPORATE STRATEGY

To compete in tough and competitive market, focusing on "Satisfaction"
of customers, and stakeholders with challenging spirit and flexibility,
striving hard to make profit, creating value for our customers and to
continue as a successful Company.

To manage and operate the company in a manner that allows growth
and profitability without high risk for stakeholders and the company by
offering quality product to our customers, while striving to improve
our product to meet our customers needs.

Our Corporate Strategy and objectives for the future are to find new
and improved means of cost reduction, fuel economy and to acquire
advanced manufacturing capabilities to support our product development
efforts and product line expansion and stand ready to leverage our
debts and be responsive to the changing economic scenario. We believe
in harnessing the inherent strengths of available human resource and
materials to the utmost and a commitment for building a solid foundation
poised for sustainable growth for the long-term benefit of our
shareholders and our employees.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING Annual Report 2025

Notice is hereby given that the 44th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of FECTO CEMENT LIMITED
will be held on Monday, October 27, 2025, at 12.00 p.m. at The Southend Club situated at, 24th Street, Khayaban-
e-Rahat, Phase VI, Defence Housing Authority, Karachi to transact the following business:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

To confirm the minutes of last AGM held on Monday October 28, 2024.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June
30, 2025, together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

https://fectogroup.com/financials/

To approve the payment of final cash dividend @ 20% i.e. Rs. 2/- per share.

To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2026, and fix their remuneration. The Board of Directors,
on the recommendation of Audit Committee, has proposed the appointment of M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co.
Chartered Accountants, as External Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2025-26.

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as special
resolutions under Section 183(3)(a) of Companies Act, 2017:

RESOLVED THAT the offer received from Faisal Town private limited for the purchase of the Company’s
Investment property, comprising land measuring 124.625 kanals situated near Islamabad International Airport,
Airport Avenue Road, Laundi, Thalian, Rawalpindi, at a price of PKR 3,200,000 per kanal, aggregating to total
consideration of PKR 398,800,000/-, be and is hereby accepted.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Company be and hereby authorized to negotiate, finalize and execute all necessary documents
and agreements including any amendments thereto in relation to the foregoing resolutions including agreement
to sell, and other related documents and including all other matters incidental thereto, and carry out any
other act or step which may be ancillary or incidental to do the above and necessary to fully achieve the
object of the foregoing resolutions. Board is also authorized to sub delegate all or any of the aforesaid
authorizations to one or more the members of the board or management.

(A statement under section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 pertaining to the material facts is given along
with this notice)

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

(TARIQ IQBAL)
COMPANY SECRETARY

Karachi: October 06, 2025
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Notes:

1)

2)

3)

4)

("l FECTO CEMENT LIMITED '

Closure of Share Transfer Books

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, October 17, 2025, to Monday,
October 27, 2025 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order by our Shares Registrar FD Registrar
Services (Private) Limited 17th Floor Saima Trade Centre, Tower I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi by the close
of business on Thursday, October 16, 2025, shall be treated as being in time for the purpose of attending,
and voting at, the AGM.

Participation in Annual General Meeting (AGM), via physical presence including through proxy

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as a
proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her. An instrument appointing a proxy must be received at
the Registered Office of the Company not later than forty-eight hours before the time of holding the Meeting.
The proxy shall produce his/her CNIC or passport to prove his/her identity. In case of proxy by corporate
entity Board of Director’s resolution or Power of attorney and specimen signature of the nominee proxy is
to be submitted along with proxy form. CDC Account Holders will have to further follow the guidelines as
laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (“SECP”). The proxy form is annexed to this notice and is also available on the company’s website.

Participation in AGM through electronic means:

a. SECP through its Circular No. 4 dated February 15, 2021 has directed the listed companies to ensure
the participation of members in general meeting through electronic means as a regular feature in
addition to holding physical meetings.

b.  The members who wish to attend the meeting through video-link are hereby requested to share
following information for obtaining video-link and login credentials, with the Company Secretary at
email address: agm@fectogroup.com with the subject line “Registration for 44th AGM of Fecto Cement
Limited” at earliest but no later than forty-eight hours before the time of holding of AGM:

Full Name CNIC No Folio/ CDC No. of Cell No. E-mail
Account No. Shares Held Address
c. Members will be registered, after necessary verification as per the above requirement and will be

provided a video-link by the Company via email.

d. Only those members will be accepted at the AGM via video-link whose names match the details shared
with the Company for registration.

e. In accordance with section 132(2) of the Act, if the Company receives consent from members holding
in aggregate 10% or more shareholding, residing in a geographical location to participate in the meeting
through video conference at least seven (7) days prior to the date of AGM, the Company will arrange
video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. To avail this facility
a request is to be submitted addressed to the Company Secretary at the following address:

Fecto Cement Limited
60-C, Khayaban-e-Shahbaz, DHA Phase VI, Karachi

E- voting and Postal Ballot
It is hereby notified that pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 and its amendments
notified vide SRO 2192(1)/2022 dated December 5, 2022, members will be allowed to exercise their right to

vote, in the AGM, in accordance with the conditions mentioned in aforesaid regulations. The Company shall
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6)

7)
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provide its members with the following options for voting, in case voting is required under Companies Act,
2017 in respect of agenda item no.5 of the notice:

i. E-Voting Procedure

a. Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with those members of the Company
who have their valid CNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail addresses available in the register of
members of the Company within due course. Members who intend to exercise their right of vote
through E-Voting shall provide their valid cell numbers and e-mail addresses on or before October 16,
2025 at the email address mentioned in clause b of note 3 above.

b. The web address, login details, will be communicated to members via email.

C. Identity of the members intending to cast vote through e-Voting shall be authenticated through
authentication for login.

d. E-voting lines will start from October 23, 2025, 9:00 a.m. and shall close on October 26, 2025 at 5:00
p.m. Members can cast their votes anytime during this period. Once the vote on the resolution is casted
by a member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

ii. Postal Ballot
a. Members may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot, which shall be circulated to members
at least seven (7) days before the meeting and will also be uploaded on the website of the Company.

b. The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper along with copy of Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairman of the meeting through post at Plot # 60-C,
Khayaban-e-Shahbaz, Phase VI, Defence Housing Authority Karachi-75500 (Attention of the Company
Secretary) at least one working day before the AGM i.e. by Friday, October 24, 2025, before 5:30 p.m.
Alternatively, members may opt to send the duly completed postal ballot with all the required details
via email to the email address mentioned in clause b of note 3 above, within the same timeline. The
signature on the ballot paper shall match with the signature on CNIC. A postal ballot received after this
time / date shall not be considered for voting.

Appointment of Scrutinizer

In accordance with regulation 11 of the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulation, 2018, the Board of the Company
has appointed M/s S.M. Sohail and Co, Chartered Accountants, a QCR rated audit firm, to act as scrutinizer
of the Company for agenda no.5 sale of investment property in the AGM and to undertake other responsibilities
as defined in regulation 11A of the said regulation.

Intimation for Change in Address

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify any change in their address to our share
registrar immediately. Members holding shares in CDS system are requested to have their addresses updated
with participant or CDC Investor Account Service.

Payment of Cash Dividend through Electronic Mode

As per provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 dividend payable in cash shall be paid through
electronic mode directly into the bank accounts designated by the entitled shareholders. Therefore, for
making compliance with the provisions of the law, all those physical shareholders who have not yet submitted
their International Bank Account Number (IBAN No.) and CNIC details to the Company, are requested to
provide the same on the Dividend Mandate Form available on Company’s website. The shareholders of the
Company in CDC are requested to provide the same to their Participants in CDC who maintain their accounts
in CDC and ensure that their IBAN details are updated. In case of unavailability of IBAN and valid CNIC, the
Company would be constrained to withhold dividend in accordance with the Companies (Distribution of
Dividends) Regulations, 2017.

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED [
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Deduction of Income Tax from Dividend and Exemptions from Deduction
The current prescribed rates for the deduction of withholding tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 from payment of dividend by the companies are as under:

For filers of income tax returns 1 15%
For non-filers of income tax returns :30%

The income tax is deducted from the payment of dividend according to the Active Tax-Payers List (ATL)
provided on the website of Federal Board of Revenue (FBR). All those shareholders who are filers of income
tax returns are therefore advised to ensure that their names are entered into ATL to enable the Company
to withhold income tax from payment of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%.

The corporate shareholders of the Company in CDC are advised to ensure that their National Tax Numbers
(NTNs) have been updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders must
send a copy of their NTN Certificate with their Folio Numbers mentioned thereon to the Company or its
Shares Registrar on the mentioned addresses.

The shareholders, who want to avail exemption u/s 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, must provide
valid Tax Exemption Certificate to our Shares Registrar before commencement of book closure otherwise tax
will be deducted on dividend as per applicable rates.

Unclaimed Dividend

As per the provision of section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by
the company which remained unclaimed/unpaid for the period of three years from the date on which it was
due and payable are required to be deposited with SECP for the credit of Federal Government after issuance
of notices to the Shareholders to file their claim. The details of the shares issued and dividend declared by
the Company which have remained due for more than three years were sent to Shareholders.

Shareholders are requested to ensure that their claims for unclaimed dividend and shares are lodged promptly.
In case no claim is lodged with the Company in the given time, the Company shall, after giving the notice in
the newspaper, proceed to deposit the unclaimed/ unpaid amount and shares with the Federal Government
pursuant to the provision of Section 244(2) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Availability of Financial Statements and Reports

The Company has circulated annual audited financial statements to its members through email at provided
registered email addresses. However, printed copy of the above referred statements will be provided to the
members upon their request. Request form is available on the website of the company.

Further, in accordance with section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017 read with SRO 389(1)/2023 dated
March 21,2023 and SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 08,2014, the above referred statements have also
been uploaded on the website of the Company which can be downloaded by using following weblink and
QR enabled code:

https://fectogroup.com/financials/

Restriction on Distribution of Gifts to Members

The SECP, vide Circular No. 2 of 2018 dated February 9, 2018, read with section 185 of Companies Act, 2017
and S.R.0. 452(1)/2025 dated March 17, 2025, has strictly prohibited companies from offering, distributing
or arranging gifts, incentives, or any similar benefits to Members at or in connection with general meetings.
Accordingly, no gifts or incentives shall be distributed at the AGM. Shareholders are respectfully requested
to refrain from bringing, presenting or demanding any gifts during the meeting.
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Special Note for Conversion of Physical shares into Book-entry Form:
In compliance with section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 and SECP’s letter no. CSD/ED/Misc.2016-639-640 dated
March 26, 2021, listed companies are required to replace existing physical shares issued by them into Book-entry
form. In view of the above requirement, shareholders of the Company having physical shares are requested to
convert their physical shares into Book-entry form as soon as possible.

Conversion of physical shares into Book-entry form would facilitate the shareholders in many ways i.e. safe custody
of shares, readily available market for instant sale and purchase of shares, eliminate risk of loss and damage, easy
and safe transfer with lesser formalities as compared to physical shares, can be pledged for financing facilities, are
entitled for instant credit of bonus and right shares. The shareholders of the Company may contact Share Registrar
of the Company for assistance in conversion of physical shares into Book-entry form.

For any query/problem/information, members may contact the Company’s Share Registrar at the following address:

F.D. Registrar Services Private Limited
17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A

I.I. Chundrigar Road Karachi

Phone no. 021-32271905-6

Email: fdregistrar@yahoo.com

Statement of Material Facts Under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017
Agenda item 5 — Sale of Investment Property

This Statement sets out the material facts relating to the Special Business under Agenda Item 5 of the Notice of
AGM of the Company.

The Company has received an offer from M/s Faisal Town (Private) Limited for the purchase of its investment
property at a price of PKR 3,200,000 per kanal, for a total consideration of PKR 398,800,000, against land measuring
124.625 kanals.

The property is located near Islamabad International Airport, Airport Avenue Road, Laundi, Thalian, and has been
classified as Investment Property in the Company’s Audited Financial Statements. An independent valuation of the
land was carried out by M/s KGT (Private) Limited on September 01, 2025, which determined the fair market value
of the property at PKR 336.50 million.

The Board of Directors, in its meeting held on September 25, 2025, resolved to place the matter before the members
in the AGM for their approval as required under Section 183(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Asset Details

Particulars Details
Nature of Asset Open residential land, classified as Investment Property
Total Area 124.625 kanals
Location Near Islamabad International Airport, Airport Avenue Road, Laundi, Thalian
Cost / Book Value PKR 102,260,000
Latest Valuation (Fair Value) PKR 336,500,000
Date of Valuation September 01, 2025
Valuer M/s KGT (Private) Limited
Offer Received From M/s Faisal Town (Private) Limited
Offer Amount PKR 398,800,000

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 9
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Utilization of Proceeds
The proceeds will be utilized for future prospective expansions and balancing, modernization, and replacement

(BMR) projects. These projects are expected to enhance the Company’s production capacity, improve efficiency,
and increase profitability.

Benefits
The property, originally acquired for capital appreciation, is now proposed to be sold at nearly three times its book

value, allowing the Company to realize significant gains. The reinvestment of these proceeds into expansion and
BMR initiatives will strengthen the Company’s long-term growth and shareholder value.

(/W FECTO CEMENT LIMITED




CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW Annual Report 2025
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

CHAIRMAN'’S REVIEW REPORT
on the Board’s Overall Performance under Section 192(4) of the Companies Act, 2017.

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

During FY 2024-25, Pakistan’s economy showed signs of stabilization under IMF-supported reforms, with GDP
growth improving slightly to 2.7% (FY24: 2.5%). Inflation fell sharply to an average of 4.6%, enabling the State Bank
of Pakistan to cut the policy rate from 20% to 11%, significantly easing financing costs. The current account turned
to a surplus of USD 2.1 billion, the first in 14 years, supported by 27% higher remittances and improved exports.
While macroeconomic indicators improved, construction and infrastructure activity remained subdued due to fiscal
constraints and limited private sector spending, which directly impacted cement demand.

INDUSTRY PERFORMANCE

The cement industry delivered a mixed performance in FY25. Domestic dispatches declined by 3.1% to 37 million
tons, while exports surged by 29.5% to 9.2 million tons, led by South Zone manufacturers. Overall industry dispatches
increased modestly by 2.1% to 46.2 million tons, but capacity utilization remained around 50-60%. Softer local
demand, coupled with pricing pressures, constrained domestic margins, though lower coal and energy costs
supported profitability across the sector.

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

Your Company recorded total dispatches of 713,644 tons, a decline of 1.6% compared to FY24. Local sales fell by
3.1%, in line with industry trends, while exports grew sharply by 88.2%, reflecting a stronger international footprint.
Despite lower volumes, profitability improved due to higher average retention prices (+3.4%) and cost optimization
(-1.0% per ton). Gross profit margin strengthened to 16.5% (FY24: 13.1%), while net profit nearly doubled to PKR
609 million, resulting in an EPS of PKR 12.14 compared to PKR 7.18 last year.

BOARD’S OVERALL PERFORMANCE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fecto Cement Limited (the “Company”) complies with all requirements set
out in the Companies Act, 2017, the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the
“COCG, 2019”), and the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange (the “Rule Book”) with respect to the composition,
procedures, and meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees. In line with the COCG, 2019, the Company
conducts an annual evaluation of the Board’s performance to ensure its effectiveness in achieving the Company’s
objectives. The purpose of this evaluation is also to identify areas requiring improvement, with appropriate action
plans developed to address them.

For the purpose of Board evaluation, a comprehensive set of criteria has been developed. The Board has recently
completed its annual self-evaluation for the year ended June 30, 2025, and | report that the overall performance
of the Board, measured on the basis of approved criteria, was satisfactory. This assessment is based on the following
key components:

1. Diversity and Mix: The Board maintained a balanced composition of independent, non-executive, and
executive directors, with female representation on the Board. Members contributed diverse experience
and professional expertise, enabling effective deliberation on strategic and operational matters. Independent
and non-executive directors actively participated in Board and Committee discussions, ensuring objectivity
and independence of judgment.

2. Engagement in Strategic Planning: The Board remained actively engaged in providing strategic direction
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to the Company. It reviewed and endorsed long-term goals and objectives, monitored progress on cost
optimization initiatives, renewable energy projects, and operational efficiency improvements, and ensured
that management’s annual plans were aligned with the vision and mission of the Company.

3. Diligence: Board members diligently performed their fiduciary duties by thoroughly reviewing and approving
business strategies, budgets, financial statements, and corporate policies. The Board discharged its
responsibilities through timely meetings supported by comprehensive agendas and relevant documentation,
enabling informed decision-making.

4, Monitoring of Business Activities: The Board remained regularly apprised of the Company’s operational
and financial performance through management presentations, reports from internal and external auditors,
and independent assessments. This enabled the Board to provide appropriate guidance, ensure effective
oversight of key business activities, and support the implementation of ERP and other internal efficiency
initiatives.

5. Governance and Control Environment: The Board continued to set the tone-at-the-top by promoting
transparency, accountability, and ethical conduct. It ensured compliance with applicable laws, regulations,
and best practices of corporate governance, while strengthening the internal control framework and risk
oversight processes to safeguard the interests of shareholders and stakeholders.

AAMIR GHANI
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Karachi: September 25, 2025
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

DEAR MEMBERS

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present before you the Annual Report of your Company along with
the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2025.

This report has been prepared in accordance with Section 227 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (‘COCG, 2019’) and will be submitted to the shareholders at
the Forty fourth (44th) Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Company to be held on October 27, 2025.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

During FY 2024-25, Pakistan's economy continued its journey toward stabilization, underpinned by improving
macroeconomic fundamentals, disciplined fiscal management, and concerted structural reforms. GDP growth
moderated to approximately 2.7%, slightly above last year’s 2.5%, albeit below original targets reflecting both
resilience and persistent economic challenges.

External Sector & Current Account:

Pakistan achieved its first full-year current account surplus in 14 years, totalling USD 2.1 billion, a standout reversal
from the previous year’s USD 2.07 billion deficit. This turnaround was driven by a 27% surge in remittances, which
crossed the USD 38 billion mark, strengthened export performance especially in textiles and IT, and rigorous import
management. The inflow helped build foreign exchange reserves to around USD 14.5 billion increased from USD
9.4 billion a year earlier, enhancing external buffers.

Inflation and Monetary Policy:

Inflation saw a sharp deceleration from a peak of nearly 38% in mid-2023 to nearly 25% in FY 2024 and finally to
an average of 4.6% in FY 2025, with year-on-year CPI easing to just 3.5% in May 2025.

The monetary policy stance also played a crucial role in reinforcing macroeconomic stability. During the year, the
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) executed an aggressive monetary easing cycle, reducing the policy rate from 20% to
just 11%, reflecting easing inflationary pressures. This monetary easing contributed to restoring investor confidence
and lowering the cost of borrowing for businesses, which supported economic activity. The moderation in interest
rates, along with exchange rate stability and a buildup in foreign exchange reserves, have contributed to improved
macroeconomic stability.

Economic Outlook & Structural Reforms:

Under the IMF-supported program, including the Extended Fund Facility (EFF) and the Resilience and Sustainability
Facility (RSF), Pakistan strengthened its policy credibility, and achieving sovereign rating upgrades.
The government has committed to structural reforms focused on increasing tax revenue by broadening the tax
base, energy pricing reforms, and privatization of state-owned enterprises, while also advancing climate action
through dedicated initiatives.

Moreover, the Uraan Pakistan Economic Transformation Plan (2024-29) has been launched, committing substantial
investments in infrastructure, energy, technology (including Quantum Valley), and social sectors, underscored by
clear governance and monitoring frameworks.

Additionally, the World Bank’s ten-year, US $20 billion financing package deepens development support across
health, energy, and climate resilience. Yet external vulnerabilities remain, evident from renewed debt rollovers

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 13




Annual Report 2025

from China, indicating continued reliance on bilaterals to shore up reserves.
Implications for Fecto Cement Limited:

The macroeconomic cure lower borrowing costs, external stability, easing inflation, and reforms create a supportive
environment for cost optimization and resilience. However, domestic demand, particularly in construction and
infrastructure, remains soft due to high private sector costs and sluggish public infrastructure disbursement.
In this context, your Company’s leadership continues to prioritize strategies around operational efficiency, risk
mitigation, and innovative cost controls to navigate the challenging demand backdrop and leverage emerging
macroeconomic tailwinds. We remain firmly committed to creating sustainable value for our stakeholders and are
confident in the strength and resilience of our business to navigate current challenges and adapt seamlessly to
economic challenges.

INDUSTRY PERFORMANCE

Despite these positive macro indicators, the overall performance of the cement industry remained mixed. Domestic
cement dispatches for the FY 2024-25 declined by 3.05%, decreasing to 37.021 million tons from 38.185 million
tons last year, reflecting a broad slowdown across both the North and South Zones.

Weakness in domestic demand was underpinned by persistent headwinds. The private housing sector remained
constrained by elevated construction costs, limited credit availability, and a slower revival of real estate investment.
On the public sector side, restrained fiscal space and slower disbursements under development programs curtailed
infrastructure-related demand. Together, these factors kept local consumption subdued despite broader improvements
in economic indicators.

Conversely, export volumes recorded significant growth of 29.54%, increasing to 9.210 million tons from 7.110
million tons during last year. South-based manufacturers capitalized effectively on international demand, with
export dispatches comprising 54.45% of total dispatches of the South Zone, as compared to 5.20% of the total
dispatches of the North Zone, while last year these percentages were 45.98% and 4.42% respectively, evidencing
the increase in export-based approach in the market.

Capacity utilization across the sector remained well below optimal levels, averaging between 50% and 60%, reflecting
persistent excess capacity particularly in the North. On the cost side, reduced coal prices and enhanced energy
efficiencies supported industry margins, partially offsetting the impact of softening local retention prices.
Total industry dispatches during the year stood at 46.231 million tons as compared to 45.295 million tons reflecting
a 2.07% year-on-year increase, primarily due to strong export growth.

In the North Zone, total dispatches for the year were 32.410 million tons as compared to 33.002 million tons,
showing a marginal decrease of 1.79% compared to last year. Domestic sales in the North decreased by 2.60% to
30.726 million tons from 31.545 million tons, while exports increased significantly by 15.55% to 1.684 million tons
from 1.457 million tons.

The South Zone registered robust growth, with total dispatches rising by 12.43% increasing to 13.821 million tons
from 12.293 million tons as compare to last year. This was driven by a 33.15% increase in export dispatches to 7.526
million tons from 5.652 million tons, while domestic sales declined by 5.20% to 6.295 million tons from 6.641
million tons.

PRODUCTION AND SALES VOLUME PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

Production and sales volume performance of your Company for the year ended June 30, 2025 as compared to last
year is presented below:
<ECro
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Particulars FY 2025 FY 2024 Growth / (Decline) %
Clinker Production (Tons) 612,026 651,048 (5.99%)
Cement Production (Tons) 713,739 724,209 (1.45%)
Local Dispatches (Tons) 690,987 713,014 (3.09%)
Export Dispatches (Tons) 22,657 12,040 88.18%
Total Dispatches (Tons) 713,644 725,054 (1.57%)
Capacity Utilization 71.37% 72.42% (1.45%)
Market share 1.54% 1.60% (3.57%)
Market share from North region 2.20% 2.20% 0.22%

During FY 2025, the Company’s operational performance reflected a mixed trend in production and dispatches.
Cement production stood at 713,739 tons, marginally lower by 1.45% compared to 724,209 tons in FY 2024. Clinker
production declined by 5.99%, reaching 612,026 tons against 651,048 tons in the preceding year.
On the sales front, total cement dispatches were recorded at 713,644 tons, a decline of 1.57% from 725,054 tons
last year. Local dispatches decreased by 3.09% to 690,987 tons (FY 2024: 713,014 tons), reflecting subdued demand
conditions in the domestic market. Conversely, export dispatches posted a remarkable growth of 88.18%, increasing
to 22,657 tons from 12,040 tons in FY 2024.

As a result, the Company’s overall capacity utilization decreased to 71.37% compared to 72.42% in the prior year.
Correspondingly, the Company’s market share declined to 1.54% from 1.60%, whereas market share in the North
region remained stable at 2.20%.

Despite the decline in volumes, the Company achieved an improvement in profitability metrics. The average
retention price increased to PKR 15,550 per ton from PKR 15,045 per ton, reflecting improved pricing power
particularly in domestic market. At the same time, the average cost per ton reduced to PKR 12,981 from PKR 13,073,
driven by process efficiencies and cost optimization initiatives. This combination of higher retention and lower cost
positively contributed to gross margins and partially offset the impact of lower sales volumes on the bottom line.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Financial performance of your Company for the year ended June 30, 2025 as compared to last year is presented
below:

Particulars FY 2025 FY 2024 Growth / (Decline) %
Local Sales 10,849,405 10,767,088 0.76%
Export Sales 247,519 141,030 75.51%
Total Sales 11,096,924 10,908,118 1.73%
Cost of sales 9,263,606 9,478,553 (2.27%)
Gross Profit 1,833,318 1,429,565 28.24%
Gross Profit as % of Sales 16.52% 13.11% 26.06%
Operating Profit/ EBIT 1,332,640 1,107,120 20.37%
Net Profit 608,692 359,967 69.10%
Earnings per Share (EPS) 12.14 7.18 69.10%
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Sales Revenue:

During the year, your Company achieved a 1.73% increase in overall sales revenue compared to last year. Local
sales revenue increase slightly by 0.76% whereas export sales revenue experienced major growth, surging by
75.51%. As stated earlier, this significant growth in exports was driven by improved international demand.
The increase in sales revenue during the year was primarily driven by 3.36% increase in average retention rate to
PKR 15,550 per ton from PKR 15,045 per ton as compare to last year, this translate to positive price variance of
PKR 360.469 million. This offsets the negative quantity variance of PKR 171.663 million due to decrease in dispatch
volumes during the year.

The contribution of export volumes to total dispatches increased to 3.17% during the year, up from 1.66% in the
previous year. While the overall share of exports in sales volume improved, the average retention rate on export
sales declined sharply by 6.73%, falling to PKR 10,925 per ton from PKR 11,713 per ton. This decline reflects
continued pressure on international market prices, particularly in the Company’s export destination of Afghanistan.

Cost of Sales:

The Company’s cost of sales decreased by 2.27% during the year, primarily due to lower dispatch volumes, which
resulted in a positive quantity variance of PKR 149.165 million. On a per ton basis, the cost of cement sold declined
by PKR 92 per ton, generating a positive price variance of PKR 65.782 million. This improvement was largely
attributable to enhanced efficiency in fuel and power consumption, with related expenses reducing by 14.57%, to
PKR 5.938 million from PKR 6.951 million last year.

The impact of cost optimization measures is further reflected in the decline of fuel and power expenses as a
proportion of total cost of sales, which fell to 64.10% from 73.34% in the prior year. A key contributor to this
efficiency was improved coal utilization, with coal cost per ton of clinker produced decreasing to PKR 6,420 from
PKR 7,278 last year.

As a result of these factors, the Company achieved a 28.24% increase in gross profit, with the gross profit margin
improving significantly to 16.52% from 13.11% in the previous year.

Net Profit Analysis:

The Company’s net profit increased significantly by 69.10%, rising by PKR 248.725 million to PKR 608.692 million
from PKR 359.967 million last year. Consequently, the net profit margin improved sharply to 5.49% from 3.30% last
year. This growth was primarily driven by:

) Improved gross profit margin as stated above.
® Reduction in finance cost by 37.65%, following a more than 20% decrease in debt liabilities.

However, these positive factors were partially offset by higher administrative and distribution expenses as well as
increased levies and taxation and share of loss on associate, with a combined adverse impact of PKR 279.334 million.
Administrative and distribution expenses rose by 26.17% to PKR 572.165 million from PKR 453.473 million, primarily
due to a 35.44% increase in salaries and wages, which amounted to PKR 375.750 million from PKR 277.431 million
last year.

Similarly, levies and taxation increased by 17.15% to PKR 551.759 million from PKR 470.979 million. This was
attributable to a 40.01% increase in current tax, rising to PKR 291.806 million from PKR 208.425 million, coupled
with a significant increase in provisions for WWF and WPPF, which rose by 82.95% to PKR 72.379 million from PKR
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39.563 million on account of higher profitability.
Earnings per share (EPS):

The Earnings per Share (EPS) of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025, stood at PKR 12.14, reflecting a
substantial improvement compared to PKR 7.18 reported in the previous year.

Financial Management:

Your Company’s balance sheet as on June 30, 2025, reflects a strong financial position, with total assets amounting
to PKR 7.967 billion from PKR 7.873 billion. The Company maintained a healthy liquidity profile, with a current ratio
of 1.77 (2024: 1.43) and a quick ratio of 0.39 (2024: 0.30), underscoring its ability to meet short-term obligations
in a timely manner.

Cash flow Management:

Your Company continues to follow an efficient cash flow management framework that regularly projects and
monitors cash inflows and outflows. Our approach is to maintain adequate liquidity to support capital expenditures,
strategic investments, modernization initiatives, working capital requirements, and contingencies, in line with the

evolving business environment and macroeconomic outlook.

During the year under review, major cash allocations included:

® Capital expenditure of approximately PKR 322.173 million,
® Income tax payments of PKR 248.980 million, and
® Repayment of long-term debt and finance cost amounting to PKR 447.361 million.

Capital Structure and reserves:

While the Company remains primarily equity-financed, it continues to prudently utilize financing schemes obtained
in prior years to support long-term requirements. A key strength of the Company is its ability to generate strong
internal liquidity, which enables management to fund growth initiatives, pursue cost-efficiency measures, and
reinforce the confidence of stakeholders.

As a result of improved profitability and effective financial management, the Company’s reserves increased by
17.63%, reaching PKR 4.048 billion as of June 30, 2025 from PKR 3.441 billion last year. This growth reflects the
successful execution of cost optimization strategies and sustainable value creation for shareholders.

Credit Rating:

Your Company continues to maintain its “investment grade” credit rating assigned by The Pakistan Credit Rating
Agency Limited (PACRA). As per the latest review dated February 21, 2025, PACRA reaffirmed Fecto Cement Limited’s
ratings at:

® Long-Term Rating: A-
® Short-Term Rating: A2
® Outlook: Stable
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These ratings reflect the Company’s sustained operational performance, efficient utilization of its manufacturing
facility, improved margins, and stable cash flows. The reaffirmation also considers the Company’s moderately
leveraged capital structure, captive energy sources, and its focus on cost optimization and plant efficiency.
PACRA has removed the rating watch placed in earlier years, citing improved operational performance and enhanced
profitability during FY2025. The assigned ratings recognize the Company’s resilience in a challenging macroeconomic
and industry environment, where overall cement demand has remained under pressure.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, GOVERNANCE (ESG), SUSTAINABILITY, DIVERSITY AND CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company remains fully committed to embedding sustainability, environmental stewardship, social responsibility,
and strong governance practices into its long-term strategy and day-to-day operations. Guided by the principles
of the COCG, 2019, and in line with emerging global best practices, the Board of Directors provides oversight of
sustainability-related risks and opportunities, including environmental performance, social impact, and diversity,
equity & inclusion (DE&l).

During the year, the Company continued to strengthen its sustainability framework through targeted initiatives in
renewable energy, environmental protection, health and safety, and corporate social responsibility. At the same
time, conscious efforts have been made to foster inclusivity and diversity within the workforce and leadership.

These initiatives are not only aimed at ensuring compliance with applicable regulations but also at creating long-
term stakeholder value, enhancing resilience against climate and operational risks, and promoting equitable growth.
The Company remains committed to setting measurable targets for DE&I and sustainability, and to gradually align
its disclosures with recognized international standards.

Renewable Energy Initiatives of Fecto Cement:

The Company remains deeply committed to energy conservation and integration of sustainable green energy
solutions.

At present, approximately 43% of the Company’s power requirement for self-consumption is met through renewable
energy sources, comprising a 5 MW solar portfolio, a 6 MW of Waste Heat Recovery (WHR) system installed at our
plant.

These strategic investments not only reinforce our commitment to carbon neutrality but also translate into
meaningful cost efficiencies and long-term operational resilience.

Contribution to National Exchequer:

During the year under review, your Company contributed approximately PKR 5,920 million to the national exchequer
in the form of sales tax, federal excise duty, and income tax.

In addition, the Company generated valuable foreign exchange inflows of around USD 0.88 million through cement
exports.

Furthermore, in its capacity as a withholding agent, the Company facilitated the collection and deposit of income
tax and sales tax on behalf of the revenue authorities from its vendors and employees, thereby supporting both
national and provincial fiscal revenues.

Environmental Compliance and Sustainability Initiatives:

Your Company remains fully committed to environmental stewardship, regulatory compliance, and sustainable
operations. Regular environmental testing is conducted to ensure that Fecto Cement’s plant consistently operates
within the permissible limits set by the National Environmental Quality (NEQ) Standards.
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Our plant is equipped with state-of-the-art technology and emission control systems, ensuring efficient dust
collection and reduction of particulate matter emissions in line with both national and international benchmarks
of quality control. Preventive maintenance programs further enhance compliance and minimize environmental
impact.

In addition, the Company has undertaken extensive tree plantation and green belt development within and around
its plant facilities. These initiatives not only reinforce our commitment to eco-friendly practices but also contribute
to a healthier ecosystem and safer community for future generations.

Through these efforts, Fecto Cement continues to align its operations with global best practices, reflecting our
focus on sustainability, responsibility, and innovation in the cement industry.

Health and Safety:

Your Company places the highest priority on Health and Safety as an integral part of its operations. We remain
committed to providing a safe and secure workplace for our employees, contractors, and stakeholders, while
ensuring that our business activities are conducted in full compliance with environmental regulations and best
practices.

To promote a strong health and safety culture, the Company regularly conducts job safety analyses, risk assessments,
and hazard identification exercises for all critical and non-routine tasks. These measures are supported by regular
health and safety talks, training sessions, and awareness programs aimed at cultivating a culture where health,
safety, and environmental responsibility are regarded as a collective duty of all employees.

During the year under review, your Company maintained a strong safety track record with no major injuries or
accidents reported, reflecting the effectiveness of our health and safety monitoring, periodic audits, and preventive
safety initiatives. This achievement demonstrates our commitment to maintaining a Zero Loss Workday Injury
environment and ensuring the well-being of our workforce.

Through these integrated efforts, Fecto Cement continues to strengthen its health and safety framework, ensuring
that safety, sustainability, and compliance remain at the forefront of our business priorities.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

As a responsible corporate citizen, your Company remains committed to contributing positively to the welfare of
its employees, neighbouring communities, and society at large. During the year, a number of initiatives were
undertaken to support education, community development, and social welfare, including:

® Education: Construction, renovation, provision of water supply, and ongoing maintenance of girls’ and a boys’
school in a nearby village to promote access to quality education.

® Community Infrastructure: Participation with the local administration in the cleaning of Khanpur Dam canal,
by providing cement and manpower support.

® Clean Water Supply: Provision of safe drinking water to nearby villages through the construction of a reservoir,
installation of an electric pump, and laying of a dedicated pipeline network.

® Manpower support: Providing livelihood to the people of nearby village by giving employment and training
at the factory premises.

® Donation: Donating 74 kanals of land, purchased at PKR 1,500,000/- for the construction of a link road connecting
nearby village with G.T road.
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® Renovation: Renovating and supplying essentials to the nearby masjid in the nearby village.
® Green belt innovation: Planting approximately 50,000 saplings in the Margalla hills.
@ Health and Welfare Support: Donation of Rs. 7.6 million during the year towards health, social welfare, and

education initiatives.

Through these efforts, Fecto Cement continues to demonstrate its commitment to improving the quality of life of
communities around its operations and contributing to sustainable social development in Pakistan.

Sustainability Risks & Mitigation:

The Company recognizes that sustainability-related risks, particularly those linked to climate change, energy
availability, and regulatory requirements, can significantly impact long-term operations and competitiveness. Key
risks include rising energy costs, carbon emission regulations, environmental compliance obligations, and the
potential impact of climate variability on raw material supply chains.

To mitigate these risks, Fecto Cement has invested in renewable energy solutions, including solar and waste heat
recovery systems, which currently meet a significant portion of the Company’s power requirements. Continuous
monitoring of emissions, adoption of energy-efficient technologies, and preventive maintenance practices further
ensure compliance with environmental standards and reduction of the Company’s carbon footprint.

The Board of Directors regularly reviews these risks as part of its governance responsibilities and remains committed
to integrating sustainability considerations into the Company’s long-term strategy. Going forward, the Company
aims to establish formal sustainability targets covering renewable energy share, energy efficiency, and carbon
intensity reduction, with progress to be periodically monitored and disclosed in line with emerging regulatory and
global best practices.

Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DE&l):

The Board strongly believes that diversity, equity, and inclusion are essential for fostering innovation, strengthening
governance, and enhancing organizational performance. The board currently overseas sustainability and DE&I
matters directly through its collective oversight, after receiving regular updates from the management. While a
formal DE&I policy and structure is under development, the Company has already taken practical steps to promote
inclusivity, including:

® Hiring employees from diverse professional, educational, and regional backgrounds, ensuring a balanced mix
of skills and experiences within the workforce.

® Maintaining female representation on the Board of Directors, in compliance with applicable laws.

® Encouraging a culture of merit-based opportunities, where promotions, responsibilities, and leadership roles

are assigned on the basis of performance and capabilities rather than gender or background.

Going forward, the Board is working towards developing a formal DE&I framework that will include clear targets
for gender representation, workforce diversity, and inclusivity initiatives, together with periodic monitoring and
disclosure of progress.

DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION AND ERP IMPLEMENTATION
Recognizing the critical role of technology in driving business growth, efficiency, and informed decision-making,

your Company has successfully completed the implementation of a modern Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
system. This achievement marks a significant milestone, as the financial statements for the year ended June 30,
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2025, have been prepared for the first time using the new ERP platform.

The transition from the legacy information system to the ERP system was made possible through the dedication
and hard work of our teams, ensuring seamless integration across all business functions. The new system provides
enhanced data accuracy, process efficiency, real-time reporting, and stronger internal controls, thereby strengthening
the Company’s overall governance and operational effectiveness.

In addition, the Company has also upgraded its connectivity infrastructure between various sites to support improved
collaboration and faster access to business-critical information.

The successful ERP implementation represents a major step forward in the Company’s digital transformation journey
and will continue to play a vital role in enabling strategic decision-making and sustainable growth.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Directors of your Company are aware of their responsibilities under COCG, 2019 and the Rule book of Pakistan

Stock Exchange. Your Company has taken all necessary steps to ensure good corporate governance and full
compliance with the Code and we confirm the following:

1. The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs,
the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

2. Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained in accordance with requirements of law;

3. Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before the
approval of the Board;

4. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

5. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation
of the financial statements and any departure therefrom has been adequately disclosed and explained;

6. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored;

7. There are no significant doubts about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern;

8 Statement of the pattern of shareholding has been included as part of this Annual Report with shares held
by associated undertakings and related persons disclosed separately;

9. There is no outstanding statutory payment due on account of taxes, levies and charges except normal and

routine nature and as disclosed in attached financial statements.
*Key operating and financial highlights for six years is annexed to this annual report.
Composition of the Board:

The diverse mix of gender, knowledge, expertise and skill sets of the members enhances the effectiveness of our
Board. Our Board composition represents the interests of all categories of shareholders and it consists of:

Total number of Directors

a) Male 6

b) Female 1
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Composition Names of Directors
a) Independent Directors Mr. Aamir Ghani

2 | Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib
b) Non-executive Director Mr. Rohail Ajmal

3 | Mr Jamil Ahmed Khan

Ms. Lubna Yasin Fecto (Female)
c) Executive Director Mr. Mohammed Yasin Fecto
Mr. Juwad Saboor

Meetings of the Board:

During the year, four (4) meetings of the Board of Directors were held in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the COCG, 2019. The attendance of each Director is presented below:

No. of
S. No. Name of Directors meetings
attended
1 Mr. Aamir Ghani (Chairman) Independent Director 1
2 Mr. Mohammed Yasin Fecto (CEO) Executive Director 4
3 Mr. Rohail Ajmal Non-Executive Director 4
4 Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib Independent Director 4
5 Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan Non-Executive Director 3
6 Mr. Juwad Saboor Executive Director 2
7 Ms. Lubna Yasin Fecto Non-Executive Director 2

The leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the meetings due to their preoccupation
or health reasons.

Mr. Juwad Saboor and Ms. Lubna Yasin Fecto were appointed as Directors on October 28, 2024, while Mr. Khalid
Yacoob and Ms. Saira Ibrahim Bawani retired from the Board on October 31, 2024.

Committees of the Board:

Alternatively, members may opt to send the duly completed postal ballot with all the required details via email
to the email address mentioned in clause b of note 3 above, within the same timeline.

1) Audit Committee:

The Board of Directors of your Company has constituted an Audit Committee in compliance with the requirements
of Regulation 27 of the COCG, 2019. The Terms of Reference of the Committee have been duly approved and
communicated to its members by the Board.

During the year, four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The attendance of the members is given
below:

No. of
S. No. Name of Directors meetings
attended

1 Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib (Chairman) Independent Director 4

2 Mr. Rohail Ajmal Non-Executive Director 4

3 Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan Non-Executive Director 3
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2) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee:
In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 28 of the COCG, 2019, the Board of Directors has constituted
a Human Resource & Remuneration Committee. The Terms of Reference of the Committee were duly approved

and communicated to the members by the Board.

During the year, one (1) meeting of the Committee was held, which was attended by all members except Mr. Aamir
Ghani.

Evaluation criteria for the Board:

In compliance with the requirements of the COCG, 2019 the Company has developed a comprehensive framework
to evaluate the performance of the Board of Directors. The evaluation criteria cover areas such as:

[ Ability to provide effective guidance on the Company’s vision, long-term strategy, and key operational
priorities.

e Commitment to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance, transparency, and regulatory
compliance.

° Oversight of financial reporting, audit processes, risk management, and safeguarding the Company’s assets.

® Active participation in Board and Committee meetings, constructive debate, and timely decision-making
in the best interest of stakeholders.

) Ability to identify and evaluate major risks affecting the business, including market, operational, financial,
and reputational exposures.

e Oversight of succession plans for key management positions and contribution to developing leadership
talent.

® Safeguarding shareholder interests and balancing the expectations of employees, customers, regulators,
and the broader community.

® Contribution towards improving policies and practices relating to health, safety, environment, energy
efficiency, and social responsibility.

® Upholding ethical standards, integrity, independence of judgment, and accountability in discharging fiduciary
duties

Performance evaluation of the Board:

The Board of Directors carried out its annual self-evaluation for the year under review. The results of the evaluation
indicated that the Board has been effective in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing strategic direction, ensuring
regulatory compliance, and safeguarding the interest of all stakeholders. The Directors demonstrated active
participation in Board deliberations and contributed constructively in setting the Company’s vision, approving
strategic initiatives, and monitoring financial and operational performance. The Board remains committed to further
strengthening its governance processes and enhancing its effectiveness through continuous learning, periodic
reviews, and adoption of global best practices.

CEO Performance Review:

The Board of Directors maintains a robust and structured process for evaluating the CEQ’s performance, anchored
in a comprehensive framework of financial, operational and strategic KPIs established at the beginning of the year.
For the year under review, the Board has thoroughly assessed the CEQ’s leadership and execution against these
benchmarks and expresses its strong appreciation for his continued commitment, resilience, and results driven
approach. The board remains fully confident in his ability to steer your Company effectively in a challenging business
environment. In addition to overseeing overall performance, the CEO is instrumental in implementing the Board’s
corporate strategy, setting clear objectives for the senior management team, and ensuring their alignment with

the Company’s long-term vision. Regular performance updates are provided to the Board, ensuring accountability
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and strategic cohesion across the organization.
Directors’ Remuneration:

The Board of Directors has approved a Remuneration Policy for Directors and Members of Senior Management,
the key features of which are as follows:

Non-executive Directors are not paid any remuneration other than a meeting fee for attending meetings of the
Board and its Committees. In line with this policy, Directors are entitled to a fee of PKR 15,000 for each meeting
of the Board or its sub-committees attended.

® The level of meeting fees is determined and approved by the Board of Directors, ensuring fairness,
transparency, and alignment with market practices.
) Directors are entitled to reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in connection with attending

meetings of the Board, its Committees, and/or General Meetings of the Company. Such expenses may
include travel, boarding, lodging, and other incidental costs.

) The remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors
in their meetings, in line with applicable laws, regulations, and the Company’s governance framework.
) The details of remuneration paid to the Chief Executive Officer and Non-Executive Directors during the

year are disclosed in Note 41 to the financial statements.

This policy ensures that Directors and the CEO are compensated fairly for the time and effort required in discharging
their fiduciary responsibilities, while remaining fully compliant with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and
the COCG, 2019.

Vision, Mission, and overall corporate strategy approval by the Board:

The Board of Directors has carefully reviewed and approved the vision, mission, and overall corporate strategy of
your Company, which reflect the founding ideology of Fecto Cement Limited. These guiding principles set the
direction of our long-term strategy and shape the future journey of the Company. The vision and mission are deeply
embedded across all levels of the organization, ensuring that every function and decision is aligned with our
purpose. They serve as the cornerstone for our day-to-day operations and as the key criterion for strategic decision-
making, driving sustainable growth and value creation for all stakeholders.

Training of the Board:

Your Company takes a keen interest in the professional development of its Board members and regularly updates
its Board members with any changes in corporate laws or Code of corporate governance. It ensures that all the
Directors of the Board comply with the requirements of Directors Training Certification.

Qualification of CFO and Head of Internal Audit:

The Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit possess the requisite qualifications and experience as
prescribed in the COCG, 2019.

Related Party Transactions:

All related party transactions carried out during the year were conducted at arm’s length terms, ensuring fairness
and transparency in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and the COCG, 2019.

These transactions were reviewed by the Audit Committee and subsequently duly approved by the Board of
Directors, in accordance with the Company’s internal policies and applicable regulatory requirements.

The detailed disclosure of related party transactions, along with their respective balances, is provided in Note 42
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to the financial statements.
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

Effective risk management and a sound internal control framework are integral to Fecto Cement Limited’s governance
structure and are essential for achieving sustainable business growth. The Board of Directors has the overall
responsibility of overseeing the Company’s risk management and internal control processes, while Senior Management
is responsible for implementation, monitoring, and continuous assessment of controls to safeguard assets, ensure
business continuity, and protect stakeholder interests.

The Company follows a structured approach to risk identification and mitigation, supported by a system of internal
financial controls designed to ensure effective operations, compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
safeguarding of assets, and reliable financial reporting. The independent Internal Audit function regularly evaluates
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, while the Audit Committee reviews their implementation and
reports its findings to the Board on a quarterly basis.

Key risk areas relevant to the Company include:

® Strategic Risks

Economic volatility, high inflation, and exchange rate fluctuations.

Rising cost of key inputs such as coal, power, and other fuels.

Intense competition and cyclical nature of the cement industry.

Policy and regulatory changes impacting demand, pricing, or taxation.
Climate change and environmental regulations influencing industry dynamics.

OO0OO0O0O

® Operational Risks

Disruptions in production or supply chain due to raw material availability.
Reliance on energy cost stability and uninterrupted power supply.

Plant maintenance and asset reliability risks.

Cybersecurity, ERP system continuity, and information security.
Occupational health, safety, and environmental compliance.

Talent retention and succession planning for critical roles.

O 0O0OO0OO0OO

) Financial Risks

Foreign exchange and interest rate volatility.

Liquidity and working capital management challenges.

Credit risk relating to receivables and counterparties.

Dependence on domestic demand and fluctuations in export markets.
Compliance and Legal Risks

Adherence to laws, regulations, and corporate governance standards.
Litigation, contractual disputes, and potential reputational risks.
Regulatory compliance related to taxation, environment, and labour laws.

O OO0 O0O0O0OO0OO0O

STATEMENT OF UNRESERVED COMPLIANCE WITH IFRS ISSUED BY IASB

The Board of Directors of your Company has reviewed the Financial Reporting process. The Financial statements
has been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The
approved accounting standards consist of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the provisions of
and directives issued under the Act.
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding of the Company in accordance with Section 227 (2) (f) of the Companies Act, 2017 and
rule 5.19.11 of the PSX Rule Book as at June 30, 2025, is annexed to this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025, were audited by M/s. Rahman Sarfaraz
Rahim Igbal Rafig, Chartered Accountants. The term of their appointment will conclude at the forthcoming AGM.
In line with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, and best
practices of corporate governance, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has
resolved to propose the appointment of BDO Ebrahim & Co. chartered Accountants, as the external auditors of
the Company for the financial year ending June 30, 2026, at a remuneration to be mutually agreed, subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on October 27, 2025.
The proposed change is intended to align with best corporate governance practices by rotation of audit firm at
regular intervals, thereby strengthening auditor independence and introducing a fresh perspective after nearly a
decade-long association with the retiring auditors. The Board places on record its appreciation for the professional
services rendered by M/s. Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rafig, Chartered Accountants during their tenure.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred between the
end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report.

DIVIDEND AND APPROPRIATION

Your Company remains committed to creating long-term value for its shareholders through prudent financial
management and a focus on sustainable growth. Over the years, careful deployment of resources, emphasis on
cost efficiencies, and strategic investments have enabled the Company to strengthen its financial position and
enhance returns to its stakeholders.

In line with this commitment, and keeping in view the current financial performance and future investment priorities,
the Board of Directors has recommended a final cash dividend of 20% (i.e. PKR 2/- per share) for the year ended
June 30, 2025, subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming AGM scheduled to be held on October
27, 2025.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

As we move into FY 2025-26, Pakistan’s macroeconomic environment reflects cautious optimism, underpinned by
easing inflation, stable exchange rates, and an improved external account position. The current account has turned
to surplus, foreign exchange reserves continue to strengthen, and inflation has moderated to low single digits,
creating room for further monetary easing by the State Bank of Pakistan. These developments, coupled with the
government’s reform agenda under the IMF Extended Fund Facility, are expected to provide greater macroeconomic
stability, reduce borrowing costs, and stimulate private sector activity. However, challenges persist in the form of
a low tax-to-GDP ratio, fiscal constraints, political volatility, and uncertainties in the global geopolitical and trade
environment, all of which may affect demand and business sentiment going forward.

For the cement industry, the outlook remains positive, with early signs of recovery in both domestic and export
markets. Domestic cement dispatches in July 2025 rose by over 18% compared to same period last year, reflecting
a gradual revival in private construction and public infrastructure spending, while exports surged by nearly 84%
on the back of improved international demand. Industry forecasts indicates that momentum may continue in the
coming months, supported by declining interest rates, easing input cost pressures, and renewed government focus
on housing and infrastructure projects. Nevertheless, persistent energy price volatility, excess capacity, and
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competitive pricing pressures will remain key challenges for cement manufacturers.

In this evolving landscape, Fecto Cement Limited remains strategically positioned to leverage opportunities and
mitigate risks. The Company continues to focus on operational efficiencies, cost optimization, and disciplined
financial management to protect margins in a competitive environment. Energy management, including efficient
coal usage and alternate energy initiatives, will remain a priority to counter rising fuel costs. Export markets,
particularly Afghanistan and regional demand centres, will continue to be developed as a strategic avenue to
improve plant utilization and enhance revenue diversification. With a strong emphasis on product quality, customer
service, and prudent financial stewardship, the Company is confident in its ability to sustain profitability, deliver
value to stakeholders, and contribute positively to Pakistan’s industrial growth.
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For Six Years from Year 2020 to Year 2025

FY 2025 FY 2024 FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2020
Quantity in Ton
Clinker:
- Production 612,026 651,048 632,116 618,559 734,323 599,016
- Capacity Utilization 68% 72% 70% 69% 89% 72%
Cement:
- Production 713,739 724,209 646,530 712,757 729,167 640,576
- Sales 713,644 725,054 641,956 712,644 731,069 641,450
Rupees in '000'
Financial Position
Assets Employed As reported in respective year
Property, plant and equipment 3,140,182 2,934,475 2,708,837 3,067,900 2,270,083 1,792,313
Intangibles 12,691 - - - - -
Right of use assets 25,260 46,248 76,812 108,442 106,020 51,730
Investment Property 102,260 102,260 102,260 - - -
Long term investments 199,862 362,834 345,732 330,850 318,009 284,350
Long term deposits 10,901 10,101 10,101 10,273 5,321 6,294
Long term loans and advances 2,965 12,391 8,466 8,776 6,722 10,757
Deferred tax asset - - 157,257 - 29,821 -
Current Assets 4,472,800 4,404,899 3,904,906 3,424,013 3,297,031 2,688,362
Total Assets 7,966,921 7,873,208 7,314,371 6,950,254 6,033,007 4,833,806
Financed By As reported in respective year
Shareholders' Equity 4,549,417 3,942,816 3,584,647 3,750,774 3,467,062 3,508,011
Long-term liabilities
Long term financing 562,558 678,308 860,641 1,017,637 520,529 87,217
Lease liabilities 139 12,285 48,398 67,173 61,605 24,809
Deferred Grant Income 69,630 102,067 140,528 184,544 69,343 10,476
Deferred Liabilities 253,308 65,734 - 33,874 - 33,430
Current Liabilities 2,531,869 3,071,998 2,680,157 1,896,252 1,914,468 1,169,863
Total Equity and Liabilities 7,966,921 7,873,208 7,314,371 6,950,254 6,033,007 4,833,806
Turnover & Profit
Sales As reported in respective year
Sales - Gross 16,768,272 14,863,390 11,549,441 9,243,510 7,059,214 5,437,681
Less : Excise duty (2,763,268) (1,425,537) (1,040,271) (1,029,161) (1,014,506) (1,142,212)
Sales tax (2,908,080) (2,529,735) (1,826,987) (1,439,782) (1,083,333) (831,565)
Sales - Net 11,096,924 10,908,118 8,682,183 6,774,567 4,961,375 3,463,904
Profitability As reported in respective year
Gross Profit / (Loss) 1,833,318 1,429,565 312,420 873,621 287,499 (715,437)
EBITDA 1,470,752 1,234,842 421,572 786,507 150,898 (893,286)
EBIT 1,332,641 1,107,120 130,274 584,095 12,434 (1,005,673)
Profit / (Loss) before levies and tax 1,160,451 830,946 (172,929) 428,860 (63,381) (1,034,246)
Provision for levies and taxation (551,759) (470,979) 39,684 (142,157) (3,906) 264,175
Profit / (Loss) after tax 608,692 359,967 (133,245) 286,703 (67,287) (770,071)
Cash Flow As reported in respective year
Net Cash from/(used in) Operating Activities 905,103 1,050,418 (194,635) 835,314 (259,341) (735,513)
Net Cash (used in)/from Investing Activities (171,647) (262,473) 42,387 (873,374) (541,910) 56,134
Net Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities (411,396) (668,544) (237,301) 313,595 554,941 351,681
Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and
Bank Balance 322,060 119,401 (389,549) 275,535 (246,310) (327,698)
Cash and Bank Balance at beginning
of the Year (404,266) (523,667) (134,118) (409,653) (163,343) 164,355
Cash and Bank Balance at end of the Year (82,206) (404,266) (523,667) (134,118) (409,653) (163,343)
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL RATIOS
For Six Years from Year 2020 to Year 2025

Ratios Description UoM FY 2025 FY 2024 FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2020
As reported in respective year

Profitability Ratios:

Gross Profit Margin percent 16.52% 13.11% 3.60% 12.90% 5.79% -20.65%
EBITDA Margin to Sales percent 13.25% 11.32% 4.86% 11.61% 3.04% -25.79%
EBIT Margin to Sales percent 12.01% 10.15% 1.50% 8.62% 0.25% -29.03%
Net Profit Margin percent 5.49% 3.30% -1.53% 4.23% -1.36% -22.23%
Return on Equity percent 13.38% 9.13% -3.72% 7.64% -1.94% -21.95%
Return on Capital Employed percent 29.29% 28.08% 3.63% 15.57% 0.36% -28.67%
Effective Tax Rate percent -47.55% -56.68% -22.95% -33.15% -6.16% 25.54%

Liquidity Ratios:

Current ratio times 1.77 143 1.46 1.81 1.72 2.30
Quick / Acid test ratio times 0.39 0.30 0.22 0.27 0.33 0.51
Cash to Current Liabilities times 0.10 0.09 0.07 0.07 0.04 0.10
Cash from Operations to Sales times 0.08 0.10 (0.02) 0.12 (0.05) (0.21)

Activity / Turnover Ratios:

Inventory turnover ratio times 4.53 4.99 5.41 4.05 3.22 3.30
No. of Days in inventory days 80.55 73.18 67.49 90.21 113.19 110.67
Debtors turnover ratio times 21.17 34.88 78.24 113.90 144.52 74.57
No. of Days in Receivables days 17.24 10.47 4.66 3.20 2.53 4.89
Creditors turnover ratio times 5.49 6.62 8.31 7.40 10.63 19.22
No. of Days in Creditors days 66.54 55.16 43.95 49.30 34.32 18.99
Operating Cycle days 31.26 28.48 28.21 44.12 81.40 96.58
Total Assets turnover ratio times 1.39 1.39 1.19 0.97 0.82 0.72
Fixed Assets turnover ratio times 3.49 3.66 3.12 2.13 2.09 1.88

Investment Valuation Ratios:

Earnings / (Loss) per share (EPS / (LPS)) rupees 12.14 7.18 (2.66) 5.72 (1.34) (15.35)
Price / Earning ratio times 1.62 2.73 (7.39) 3.43 (24.78) (1.36)
Market value per share as on June 30 rupees 92.91 29.72 19.90 19.62 33.24 20.88
Breakup value per share rupees 90.70 78.60 71.46 74.78 69.12 69.94
Price to book ratio percent 102.44% 37.81% 27.85% 26.24% 48.08% 29.85%
Dividend Yield percent 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Dividend Payout ratio percent 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Dividend Cover ratio times - - - - - -

Capital Structure Ratios:

Financial leverage ratio times 1.75 2.00 2.04 1.85 1.74 1.38
Net Borrowing / EBITDA times 0.20 0.36 0.54 0.40 0.42 0.17
Debt to Equity Ratio times 0.75 1 1.04 0.85 0.74 0.38
Av. Operating Working Capital to Sales Ratio  percent 19.74% 19.64% 22.81% 27.17% 35.43% 50.43%
Interest Cover ratio times 7.74 4.01 0.43 3.76 0.16 (35.20)
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Particulars Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Total
Quantity in Ton
Clinker:
- Production 186,767 146,649 97,535 181,075 612,026
- Capacity Utilization 83% 65% 43% 80% 68%
Cement:
- Production 165,606 173,591 171,797 202,745 713,739
- Sales 170,093 171,020 171,873 200,658 713,644
----------------------- Rupees in '000" -------------------=---
Sales - net 2,875,038 2,727,164 2,541,603 2,953,119 11,096,924
Cost of sales (2,212,342) (2,193,323) (2,376,472) (2,481,469) (9,263,606)
Gross profit 662,696 533,841 165,131 471,650 1,833,318
Administrative expenses (110,206) (120,675) (96,100) (105,410) (432,391)
Distribution expenses (35,894) (30,766) (33,036) (40,078) (139,774)
Other operating income & expenses (9,810) 18,382 62,282 61,595 132,449
(155,910) (133,059) (66,854) (83,893) (439,716)
Operating profit 506,786 400,782 98,277 387,757 1,393,602
Share of (loss) / profit of associate - - - (60,961) (60,961)
Finance cost (53,169) (54,997) (37,037) (26,987) (172,190)
Profit before levies and tax 453,617 345,785 61,240 299,809 1,160,451
Levies and Taxation (203,596) (124,936) (12,181) (211,046) (551,759)
Profit after levies and tax 250,021 220,849 49,059 88,763 608,692
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Gross Profit %

Net Profit %

Working Capital Ratio
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Quick Ratio

Interest Coverage Ratio

3.76
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Return on Equity
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Return on Assets

Debt-to-Equity Ratio

1.04
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Capital Structure
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Operating Cash Flow
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Inventory Turnover

5.41

A

Receivable Turnover
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Payable Turnover

Financial Leverage

2.04
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FY 2025 FY 2024 FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2020
Rupees in '000'
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 1,160,451 830,946 (172,929) 428,860 (63,381) (1,034,246)
Adjustment for non-cash items 283,183 295,188 434,710 315,924 174,572 118,456
Working capital changes (288,325) 112,890 (391,795) 119,485 (343,183) 266,577
Net Cash generated from / (used in) -
operating activities 1,155,309 1,239,024 (130,014) 864,269 (231,992) (649,213)
Capital expenditure (326,423) (347,516) (43,269) (942,139) (596,298) (10,031)
Free Cash flows to firm 828,886 891,508 (173,283) (77,870) (828,290) (659,244)
Net borrowing (repaid) / obtained (243,047) (417,508) (11,914) 443,415 610,896 391,325
Interest payments (168,349) (251,020) (225,354) (129,803) (55,933) (14,623)
Free Cash flows to equity holders 417,490 222,980 (410,551) 235,742 (273,327) (282,542)
B Free Cash Flows to firm B Free Cash Flows to eguity holders
) 1,000
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2 -
E 00
600
400
200 .
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Analysis on Free Cash Flows

FY 2024

WO

Free cash flows represent the cash a company can generate after required investment to maintain or expand its
assets base. It is a measurement of a Company's financial performance and health.
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION
AND HOW WEALTH DISTRIBUTED

FY 2025 FY 2024
Rs. ‘000’ % Rs. ‘000’ %
Wealth Generated
Sales (including taxes) 16,768,272 99.16% 14,863,390 99.23%
Other operating income 142,272 0.84% 115,080 0.77%
Total Wealth generated during the year 16,910,544 100% 14,978,470 100%
Distribution of Wealth
Operating costs and other general expenses 8,449,333 51.06% 8,827,204 60.00%
To Employees as Remuneration 1,250,522 7.56% 973,610 6.62%
To Government as Taxes 5,920,328 35.78% 4,139,953 28.14%
To Society as Donations 7,628 0.05% 6,443 0.04%
To Finance Providers as Finance Cost 172,190 1.04% 276,174 1.88%
Retained within the Company 746,803 4.51% 487,689 3.32%
Total Wealth distributed during the year 16,546,804 100% 14,711,073 100%
WEALTH DISTRIBUTION 2025 WEALTH DISTRIBUTION 2024
To Society,
. 0.04%, 0%
To Society, . " To Company,
To Financers,
To Financers, 0.05%, 0% Ti-gi;n&p:;v, 1.88%, 2% 3.32%, 3%
1.04%, 1%
To
Government,
28.14%, 28%
To !
Government,
35.78%, 36%
Operating & To Employees,
Other 6.62%, 7% Operating &
To Employees, Overheads, Other
7.56%, 8% 51.06%, 51% Overheads,
60.00%, 60%

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 39




Annual Report 2025

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Gross Profit Ratio

The relationship of the gross profit made for a specified
period and net sales achieved during that period.

Net Profit Ratio

Net profit ratio is the ratio of net profit (after taxes)
to net sales.

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation &
Amortization (EBITDA)

The EBITDA ratio indicates how much profit a company
makes before paying for Interest, Tax, Depreciation &
Amortization.

Current Ratio

A company’s current assets divided by its current
liabilities. This ratio gives you a sense of a company’s
ability to meet short-term liabilities, and is a measure
of financial strength in the short term. A ratio of 1
implies adequate current assets to cover current
liabilities: the higher above 1, the better.

Debt-Equity Ratio

The ratio of a company’s liabilities to its equity. The
higher the level of debt, the more important it is for
a company to have positive earnings and steady cash
flow. For comparative purposes, debt-equity ratio is
most useful for companies within the same industry.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

The portion of a company’s profit allocated to each
outstanding share of ordinary shareholders. Earnings
per share serve as an indicator of a company’s
profitability

(/W FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 1

Profit Margin

Determined by dividing net income by net sales during

a time period and is expressed as a percentage. Net
profit margin is a measure of efficiency and the higher
the margin, the better. Trends in margin can be
attributed to rising/falling production costs or rising/
falling price of the goods sold.

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)

The amount of profits earned (before interest and
taxes), expressed as a percentage of total equity. This
is a widely followed measure of profitability, thus the
higher the number the better. ROCE tells you the
amount of profit a company is generating per one
rupee of capital employed.

Return on Equity (ROE)

A percentage that indicates how well common
stockholders’ invested money is being used. The
percentage is the result of dividing net earnings by
common stockholders’ equity. The ROE is used for
measuring growth and profitability. You can compare
a company’s ROE to the ROE of its industry to
determine how a company is doing compared to its
competition.

stockholders’ invested money is being used. The
percentage is the result of dividing net earnings by
common stockholders’ equity. The ROE is used for

measuring growth and profitability. You can compare
a company’s ROE to the ROE of its industry to

Cash from Operations to Sales

The cash flow from operations to sales ratio reveals
the ability of a business to generate cash flow in
proportion to its sales. It is the ratio of operating cash
flows to net sales.
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AS AT JUNE 30, 2025
No. of Shareholding Total shares
Shareholders From To

667 1 - 100 18,303
648 101 - 500 180,737
698 501 - 1000 457,169
512 1001 - 5000 1,169,001
107 5001 - 10000 802,878
35 10001 - 15000 431,385
21 15001 - 20000 364,989
7 20001 - 25000 156,838

7 25001 - 30000 202,721

5 30001 - 35000 167,901

2 35001 - 40000 76,336

2 40001 - 45000 88,930

3 45001 - 50000 149,667

2 55001 - 60000 117,640

2 60001 - 65000 124,410

1 65001 - 70000 67,400

2 70001 - 75000 148,000

3 75001 - 80000 230,199

2 85001 - 90000 176,534

2 120001 - 125000 244,201

1 130001 - 135000 132,177

1 155001 - 160000 157,937

1 195001 - 200000 200,000

1 200001 - 205000 205,000

1 230001 - 235000 235,000

1 290001 - 295000 294,500

1 345001 - 350000 350,000

1 355001 - 360000 355,071

1 365001 - 370000 369,810

1 645001 = 650000 645,100

1 1125001 - 1130000 1,127,255

1 3035001 - 3040000 3,039,700

1 10190001 - 10195000 10,191,536

1 27480001 - 27485000 27,481,675
2,742 50,160,000
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

AS AT JUNE 30, 2025
Shareholder’s Category Number of Number of
Shareholders/S| Shares held
hares Folio
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties _ _
NIT and ICP 2 1,129,855
Directors
Mr. Mohammed YasinFecto 2 37,673,211
Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan 1 2,500
Mr. Rohail Ajmal 1 1,000
Mr. Aamir Ghani 1 2,750
Mr. Mohammad Anwar Habib 1 2,750
Ms. Lubna Yasin Fecto 1 1,500
Mr. Juwad Saboor 1 500
8 37,684,211
Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking
Finance Companies, and Insurance 7 3,761,371
Modaraba and Mutual Funds
CDC - Trustee NBP Stock Fund 1 121,700
CDC - Trustee NBP Islamic Sarmaya lzafa Fund 1 77,200
First Crescent Modaraba 1 880
3 199,780
OTHERS
Institutions (Joint Stock Companies) 27 886,741
Others 5 216,225
Individuals - Local 1,804 6,281,817
2,722 7,384,783
Total: 2,742 50,160,000
Detail of trading in shares by the Directors, Chief Financial Officers, Company Secretary and their spouse
and Minor Children
Purchase
Sale
Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest
Mr. Mohammed Yasin Fecto 37,673,211
Muslim Commercial Bank Limited - Treasury 3,039,700

(/0 FECTO CEMENT LIMITED




Annual Report 2025

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

M/s. Fecto Cement Limited ('the Company') has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019, ('the Regulations) in the following manner:

1.

ai
4

The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:

Male 6
Female 1

The Composition of board is as follows:

Independed Directors Mr. Aamir Ghani
Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib
Non-Executive Directors Mr. Rohail Ajmal

Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan
Ms. Lubna Yasin Fecto (Female)

Executive Directors Mr. Mohammed Yasin Fecto
Mr. Juwad Saboor

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than seven (7) listed
companies including this company;

The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with
their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and these
Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman, and in his absence, by a Director elected
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017
and Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board.

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors in accordance with
the Companies Act, 2017 and these Regulations;

Up to the date of reporting period (i.e. June 30, 2025), following Directors have attended Directors training
program:

(i) Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan

(ii)  Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib
(iii) ~ Mr. Rohail Ajmal

(iv)  Mr. Aamir Ghani

One Director Mr. Mohammed Yasin Fecto, meets the criteria of exemption from Directors Training Program.
The remaining Directors, Mr. Juwad Saboor and Ms. Lubna Yasin Fecto, being newly appointed Directors, will
obtain certification under the Directors Training Program within a period of one (1) year as encouraged under
the Regulations.
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10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations;

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval
of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below. All members of the Committees are
Non-Executive Directors and at least one member is independent Director and Chairman of the committees
is the Independent Director;

AUDIT COMMITTEE

(i) Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib Chairman

(i) | Mr. Rohail Ajmal Member

(iii)| Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan Member
HR and REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

(i) Mr. Mohammed Anwer Habib Chairman

(ii) | Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan Member

(iii)| Mr. Aamir Ghani Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committees for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

i Audit Committee Quarterly
ii. HR and Remuneration Committee Annual

15. The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified and experienced
for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered
with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and their
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not close relative ( spouse, parent, dependent and non dependent
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary
or a Director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Companies Act 2017, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been

("W FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 1

complied with

The company currently has two elected independent directors out of a total of seven directors on the Board.
Both independent directors possess the requisite competencies, skills, knowledge, and experience to
competently discharge their duties in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, thereby fulfilling the
necessary requirements for their roles. However, following the completion of their three consecutive terms,
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their independence has been impaired and therefore, Audit Committee is not being chaired by an independent
director. In light of this, the company intends to appoint new independent directors by the end of December

2025.

We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulation have been complied with except as explained
below:

As per Regulation 10A, the Board is responsible for governance and oversight of sustainability-related
risks and opportunities. In line with this requirement, the Board of Directors of the Company already
exercises regular oversight of sustainability considerations and promotes diversity, equity, and inclusion
(DE&I) in its decision-making framework. While a formalized policy and governance structure for
sustainability and DE&I has not yet been fully documented, the Board is actively working on drafting
and introducing such policies and structures, together with defined targets for DE&I and sustainability
strategies and appropriate reporting mechanisms. Once finalized, these will provide a structured
framework for identifying, managing, and disclosing principal and emerging sustainability risks and
opportunities, as well as monitoring performance against set priorities and targets. The Board remains
committed to gradually aligning the Company’s sustainability and DE&I framework with best practices
and recognized international standards, and to ensuring that future disclosures adequately reflect
progress in these areas.

The Board recognizes the importance of a formal and effective mechanism for conducting an annual
evaluation of the Board’s own performance, that of its members, and of its committees as required
under Regulation 10(3)(v) of the Regulations. While the Board and its committees already review and
discuss their functioning and provide feedback and suggestions for improvement on a regular basis,
such evaluations have not yet been carried out through a formal documented process nor discussed
comprehensively at Board meetings. In order to address this gap, the management has recently
developed an updated evaluation mechanism under which structured evaluation forms covering the
performance of the Board, its committees, and individual members will be circulated annually to all
directors. The results will be consolidated, formally reviewed, and discussed by the Board starting from
the next financial year. This will ensure systematic, transparent, and continuous improvement in
governance effectiveness, in line with the requirements of the Regulations.

The company currently has two elected independent directors out of a total of seven directors on the
Board. Both independent directors possess the requisite competencies, skills, knowledge, and experience
to competently discharge their duties in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, thereby
fulfilling the necessary requirements for their roles. However, following the completion of their three
consecutive terms, their independence has been impaired and therefore, Human Resource Committee
is not being chaired by an independent director. In light of this, the company intends to appoint new
independent directors by the end of December 2025.

The Board of Directors has not constituted a separate Nomination Committee at this stage. Matters
relatingto nominations, Board composition, and committee structures are presently addressed
directly by the Board on the recommendation of the Human Resource and Remuneration (HR&R)
Committee, as these responsibilities fall within its approved terms of reference. The Board, supported
by its members’ diverse expertise and experience, remains fully capable of managing nomination-
related matters effectively without the need for a standalone committee at this time. However, the
Company acknowledges the increasing importance of structured oversight in this area and, as part of
its commitment to good corporate governance, will consider establishing a dedicated Nomination
Committee in the future if and when the governance framework evolves, or the complexity of operations
warrants a more formalized structure.

The Board of Directors has not constituted a separate Risk Management Committee. Oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework, including review of financial, operational, and compliance
controls, is presently undertaken by the Audit Committee in accordance with its approved terms of
reference. The Audit Committee regularly reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management
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procedures and reports its findings and recommendations to the Board. In addition, the Company has
provided a separate disclosure of its risk management and internal control framework in the Directors’
Report, ensuring appropriate transparency as required under the Regulations. The Board believes that
this arrangement sufficiently addresses the requirements of risk oversight without necessitating a
standalone committee at this stage. However, the Company remains open to establishing a separate
Risk Management Committee in the future should the governance framework or scale of operations
warrant more specialized oversight.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

AAMIR GHANI
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Karachi: September 25, 2025

(W FECTO CEMENT LIMITED




Annual Report 2025
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN THE LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (‘the Regulations’) prepared by the Board of Directors of M/s. Fecto Cement Limited (‘the
Company’) for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review
of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or
to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures
and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related
party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained
in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as stated in the
below-referred paragraphs of the Statement of Compliance:

S. Nature of Paragraph
No. the No. Description of the Non-Compliance
Requirement

As per Regulation no. 06 of the Regulations, a listed company shall
have at least two or one-third members of the Board of Directors
(“the Board’), whichever is higher, as independent directors. In this
relation, the proviso to Section 166(2) of the Companies Act, 2017
lists down the various circumstances in which a director is not
considered as independent and goes on to state that, if a director
has served on the Board for more than three consecutive terms
from the date of his first appointment, he shall not be regarded
as an independent director.

In its last elections of directors held on October 28, 2024, Mr.
(1) Mandatory 18 Aamir Ghani and Mr. Mohammad Anwar Habib were elected as
independent directors notwithstanding the fact that they had
already served on the board for three consecutive terms and were
therefore no longer eligible for election as independent directors
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Furthermore, in terms of the Regulation no. 27(1) of the Regulations,
the Audit Committee shall comprise of three members at least
one of whom shall be an independent director. In addition, the
said committee shall also be chaired by an independent director.
However, since the Audit Committee of the Company is chaired
by Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib, this was hence also in
contravention of the requirements of the regulation 27(1).

In this relation, as stated in paragraph 18 of the Statement of
Compliance, the Company intends to rectify the above non-
compliances by appointing new independent directors on the
Board by the end of December 2025.

Explanation for
non- compliance
is required
(Non- Mandatory)

()

19

As per the Regulation 10A, the Board is responsible for governance
and oversight of sustainability risks and opportunities and, for this
purpose, is required / encouraged to take a number of measures
including, in particular, implementation of policies to promote
diversity, equity and inclusion (DE&I); taking steps to proactively
understand and address the principal as well as emerging
sustainability risks and opportunities; ensuring that the Company’s
sustainability and DE&I related strategies, priorities and targets as
well as performance against these targets are periodically reviewed
and monitored; and establishment of dedicated sustainability
committee having at least one female director, or assignment of
additional responsibilities to an existing board committee.

In accordance with Regulation 10A, the process of compliance is
currently underway, and the matter remains under consideration
by the Board. Upon finalization, the Board will assume and discharge
all responsibilities prescribed under Regulation 10A until it deems
it appropriate to establish a dedicated Sustainability Committee.

Explanation for
(3) non- compliance
is required
(Non- Mandatory)

19

As required under Regulation 10(3)(v), a formal and effective
mechanism for the annual evaluation of the Board, its members,
and committees is to be in place.

While the Board and its committees regularly review their
performance, formal documented evaluations have not yet been
carried out or comprehensively discussed. To address this,
management has developed a structured evaluation framework,
under which annual assessments will be conducted and formally
reviewed by the Board from the next financial year to strengthen
governance effectiveness in line with regulatory requirements.

Explanation for
(4) non- compliance
is required

19

As per Regulations 28(1) and 28(2), the Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee (‘HR&R Committee’) must comprise at
least three members, including at least one independent director,
and must be chaired by an independent director. However, the
Company’s HR&R Committee is currently chaired by Mr.
Mohammed Anwer Habib, which is not in compliance with the
requirements of Regulation 28.
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Explanation for
non- compliance
is required
(Non- Mandatory)

19

As per the Regulation no. 29 of the Regulations, the Board may
constitute a separate committee, designated as the Nomination
Committee, of such number and class of directors, as it may deem
appropriate in the circumstances.

As disclosed in paragraph 19 of the Statement of Compliance, the
Company has not established a separate Nomination Committee.
The Board is of the view that the responsibilities of such a committee
are being effectively discharged by the Board itself, based on the
recommendations of the Human Resource and Remuneration
(HR&R) Committee. The Board comprises members with substantial
expertise in the areas for which a Nomination Committee is required
under Regulation 29(2). Accordingly, the Board believes that the
immediate formation of a separate Nomination Committee is not
necessary at this stage.

Explanation for
non- compliance
(6) is required
(Non- Mandatory)

19

As per the Regulation no. 30 of the Regulations, the Board may
constitute a separate committee, designated as the Risk
Management Committee, of such number and class of directors,
as it may deem appropriate in the circumstances.

As stated in paragraph 19 of the Statement of Compliance, the
Company has not setup a separate Risk Management Committee
and is of the view that the Audit committee currently includes
individuals with extensive expertise in the areas for which a Risk
Management Committee is responsible in terms of Regulation
30(2) and, as such, the immediate formation of a separate Risk
Management Committee is not deemed necessary at this stage.

Karachi.
Date: September 26, 2025
UDIN: CR202510210mGE9sI1HU

. fslel: A

RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ
Chartered Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Fecto Cement Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including Material Accounting Policy Information and other explanatory information (‘the
financial statements’), and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best
of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and, respectively, give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. However, we have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
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in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. However, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
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financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of

account and returns,

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company’s business; and

(d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Muhammad Rafiq Dosani.

Aol A

RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Date: September 26, 2025
UDIN: AR202510210qgxy07Td6
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

(Restated) (Restated)

Note 2025 2024 2023
———— Rupees in ‘000’

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves

Authorized capital

75,000,000 (2024: 75,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 750,000 750,000 750,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

50,160,000 (2024: 50,160,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 501,600 501,600 501,600

Revenue reserves

General reserve 550,000 550,000 550,000

Unappropriated profit 3,499,930 2,891,238 2,531,271
4,049,930 3,441,238 3,081,271

Capital Reserve

Share of other comprehensive income of associate (2,113) (22) 1,776
4,549,417 3,942,816 3,584,647

Non-current liabilities

Long term financing from a banking company - secured 5 562,558 678,308 860,641
Lease liability 6 139 12,285 48,398
Deferred income - Government grant 7 69,630 102,067 140,528
Deferred taxation 8 253,308 65,734 -
885,635 858,394 1,049,567
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 9 1,862,023 1,955,084 1,346,954
Short term borrowing - secured 10 384,412 735,513 954,052
Accrued mark-up 11 6,917 38,699 54,205
Unclaimed dividend 14,473 14,473 14,489
Unpaid dividend 185 185 185
Taxation-net 27 21,384 - -
Current maturity of long term financing - secured 12 194,533 262,238 238,355
Current maturity of lease liabilities 6 15,512 27,335 27,900
Current maturity of government grant 7 32,430 38,471 44,017
2,531,869 3,071,998 2,680,157
Contingencies and commitments 13
Total equity and liabilities 7,966,921 7,873,208 7,314,371
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 3,140,182 2,934,475 2,708,837
Intangibles 15 12,691 - -
Right-of-use assets 16 25,260 46,248 76,812
Investment property 17 102,260 102,260 102,260
Long term investments 18 199,862 362,834 345,732
Long term deposits 19 10,901 10,101 10,101
Long term loans and advances 20 2,965 12,391 8,466
Deferred taxation - - 157,257
3,494,121 3,468,309 3,409,465
Current assets
Stores and spares 21 1,388,382 1,487,308 1,508,972
Stock-in-trade 22 2,089,158 1,999,639 1,800,895
Trade debts - unsecured 23 569,636 478,780 146,735
Short term investment - unsecured 24 49,930 - -
Short term loan to a related party 25 19,990 19,990 70,895
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivable 26 88,763 96,200 68,911
Tax refunds due from government 27 14,735 41,735 109,833
Cash and bank balances 28 252,206 281,247 198,665
4,472,800 4,404,899 3,904,906
Total assets 7,966,921 7,873,208 7,314,371
The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Restated)
Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000’

Sales revenue - net 29 11,096,924 10,908,118
Cost of sales 30 (9,263,606) (9,478,553)
Gross profit 1,833,318 1,429,565
Administrative expenses 31 (432,391) (346,335)
Distribution costs 32 (139,774) (107,138)

(572,165) (453,473)
Finance costs 33 (172,190) (276,174)
Other expenses 34 (9,823) (2,953)
Operating Profit 1,079,140 696,965
Share of (loss) / profit of associate 18 (60,961) 18,901
Other income 35 142,272 115,080
Profit before levies and taxation 1,160,451 830,946
Levies 36 (72,379) (118,174)
Profit before taxation 1,088,072 712,772
Taxation 37 (479,380) (352,805)
Profit after taxation 608,692 359,967

--------- (Rupees) ---------

Earning per share - basic and diluted 12.14 7.18

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

(Restated)
2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000’

Profit after taxation 608,692 359,967

Other comprehensive income

Item that will not be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss (net of tax):

Share of other comprehensive income of associate (2,091) (1,798)

Total comprehensive income for the year 606,601 358,169

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Revenue Capital
reserves reserve
Issued, General Unappropriated Surplus on Share of
Subscribed Reserve Profit Revaluation of other
& Paid up investment in comprehensive Total
capital unquoted income of
shares associate

Rupees in '000'

Balance as at June 30, 2023 (as previously reported) 501,600 550,000 2,438,236 106,919 - 3,596,755
Effect of correction of prior period errors (refer note 43) - - 93,035 (106,919) 1,776 (12,108)
Balance as at June 30, 2023 (as restated) 501,600 550,000 2,531,271 - 1,776 3,584,647

Total comprehensive income / (loss)
for the year ended June 30, 2024

- Profit after taxation (as restated) - - 359,967 - - 359,967
- Other comprehensive income (as restated) - - - - (1,798) (1,798)

- - 359,967 - (1,798) 358,169
Balance as at June 30, 2024 (as restated) 501,600 550,000 2,891,238 - (22) 3,942,816

Total comprehensive income / (loss)
for the year ended June 30, 2025

- Profit after taxation - - 608,692 - - 608,692
- Other comprehensive income - - - - (2,091) (2,091)

- - 608,692 - (2,091) 606,601
Balance as at June 30, 2025 501,600 550,000 3,499,930 - (2,113) 4,549,417

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

(Restated)
Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000’
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before levies and taxation 1,160,451 830,946
Adjustments for:
- Finance costs 33 172,190 276,174
- Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 14.1 115,712 102,066
- Depreciation on right-of-use assets 16 20,988 25,656
- Amortization 15 1,411 -
- Provision for expected credit loss - 230
- Provision against slow moving obsolete spares - 2,723
- Share of profit / loss from associate 18.2 60,961 (18,901)
- Amortization of deferred government grant 35 (38,478) (44,007)
- Store Write off 34 4,265 -
- Interest income 35 (48,519) (44,870)
- Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 35 (5,347) (3,883)
283,183 295,188

Cash generated from operating activities before working capital changes 1,443,634 1,126,134
Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
- Stores and spares 94,661 35,583
- Stock-in-trade (89,519) (198,744)
- Trade debts (90,856) (332,275)
- Loans, advances, deposit and prepayment (42,729) (4,595)
- Sales tax refundable 5,558 13,307
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
- Trade and other payables (165,440) 599,614

(288,325) 112,890
Cash generated from operations 1,155,309 1,239,024
- Income tax paid (248,980) (184,681)
- Long term deposits (800) -
- Long term loan and advances (426) (3,925)
Net cash generated from operating activities 905,103 1,050,418
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure incurred (322,173) (347,516)
Additions to intangible assets (4,250) -
Repayment of principal from short term investment 49,990 -
Repayment of short term loan by related party - 50,905
Interest received 98,685 22,177
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed asset 6,101 11,961
Net cash used in investing activities (171,647) (262,473)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liability (principal portion) (23,969) (36,678)
Dividend paid - (16)
Long term financing received 59,936 -
Repayment of long term financing (principal portion) (279,014) (199,110)
Finance cost paid (168,349) (251,020)
Short term borrowings - net - (181,720)
Net cash used in financing activities (411,396) (668,544)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 322,060 119,401
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year (404,266) (523,667)
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year 39 (82,206) (404,266)

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
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INTRODUCTION

Legal status of the Company

Fecto Cement Limited ('the Company') was incorporated in Pakistan on February 28, 1981 as a public limited
company under the repealed Companies Act, 1913 (repealed with the enactment of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 on October 8, 1984 and subsequently by the Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 2017). The
shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

Location of the registered office and the manufacturing facilities

Registered office:

The Company's registered office is situated at Plot # 60-C, Khayaban-e-Shahbaz, Phase-VI, Defense Housing
Authority, Karachi-75500.

Manufacturing facility:
The Company's manufacturing facility is situated at Sangjani Village Sangjani, Islamabad-4400.
Marketing office:

The company's marketing office, is situated at , 339, Main Peshawar Road, Chairing Cross Service Road,
Westridge-1, Rawalpindi.

Principal business activity

The principal activity of the Company is production and sale of ordinary Portland cement.
BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. Accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

- Provisions of, and directives issued under, the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of, and directives issued under, the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards,
the provisions of, and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement
Items in these financial statements have been measured at their historical cost except for:

(a) Long term investment in unquoted ordinary shares of M/s. Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited
which is carried under the equity method of accounting.
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2.3 Functional and presentation currency
Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the
application of the Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income

and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognized prospectively.

(a) Judgements

Judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognized in these financial statements are as follows:

Area of judgement Brief description of the judgement applied

Property, plant and equipment | Whether the consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the Company's fixed assets is reduced over time and, accordingly,
whether it is appropriate to use 'straight line method' as the depreciation
method.

Provision for taxation Refer Note 3.18

Timing of revenue recognition Whether control of the promised goods is transferred to the customer
when the goods are dispatched from the Company's premises.

Financing for payment of Discount rate used to determine the value of government grant element

REF / TERF embedded in the long term finance received from a commercial bank
under the SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of Renewable Energy
Scheme and Temporary Economic Refinance Scheme.

(b) Assumptions and other major sources of estimation uncertainty

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial year is
included are as follows:

Area of estimation uncertainty Brief description of the assumption or the source of estimation
uncertainty

Property, plant and equipment Estimation of useful lives and residual values of the operating fixed
assets

Deferred taxation Recognition of deferred tax asset on unused tax credits - availability
of future taxable profit against which such deductible temporary
differences on unused tax losses and credits can be utilised.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Amendments to existing standards that became effective during the year

The following new or amended standards and interpretations became effective for the financial year and
are considered relevant to the Company’s financial statements:

- 1AS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments issued January 2020 and
October 2022, effective January 1, 2024):

Under the previous requirements of I1AS 1, a liability was classified as current if the Company did not
had an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
Following the amendments, the requirement for the right to be “unconditional” has been removed.
Instead, the amendments specify that the right to defer settlement must be substantive and must exist
as of the reporting date. Such a right may depend on the Company’s compliance with conditions
(covenants) set out in a loan agreement.

In October 2022, the IASB clarified that only covenants that the Company is required to comply with
on or before the reporting date affect whether a liability is classified as current or non-current. Covenants
that are tested after the reporting date (i.e., future covenants) do not impact classification at that date.
However, if non-current liabilities are subject to future covenants, the Company must provide additional
disclosures to enable users to understand the risk that such liabilities could become repayable within
twelve months after the reporting date.

- IFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments issued September 2022, effective January
1, 2024):

The amendments affect how a seller-lessee accounts for variable lease payments arising from a sale-
and-leaseback transaction. At the time of initial recognition, the seller-lessee is required to include
variable lease payments when measuring the lease liability. Subsequently, the seller-lessee applies the
general requirements for lease liability accounting in a way that ensures no gain or loss is recognised
in relation to the right-of-use asset it retains. These amendments introduce a new accounting model
for variable lease payments and may require seller-lessees to reassess and, in some cases, restate
previously recognised sale-and-leaseback transactions.

The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations have not
been early adopted by the Company and do not have any material impact on the Company's financial
statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not
yet effective

The following standards and amendments have been issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning July 1, 2024 and have not been early adopted by the Company:

IAS 21 — The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Amendments: Lack of Exchangeability, effective
January 1, 2025):

Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates address circumstances where a
currency is not exchangeable, often due to government restrictions. In such cases, entities are required
to estimate the spot exchange rate that would apply in an orderly transaction at the measurement date.
The amendments permit flexibility by allowing the use of observable exchange rates without adjustment
or other estimation methods, provided these meet the overall estimation objective. When assessing this,
entities should consider factors such as the existence of multiple exchange rates, their intended use, nature,
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and frequency of updates. The amendments also introduce new disclosure requirements, including details
of the non-exchangeability, its financial impact, the spot rate applied, the estimation approach used, and
related risks.

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 — Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments (effective
January 1, 2026):

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Classification
and Measurement provide clarifications and updates in several areas. They refine the requirements around
the timing of recognition and derecognition of certain financial assets and liabilities, introducing a new
exception for financial liabilities settled via electronic cash transfer systems. The amendments also clarify
and expand the guidance on assessing whether a financial asset meets the “solely payments of principal
and interest” (SPPI) criterion. In addition, new disclosure requirements are introduced for instruments with
contractual terms that can alter cash flows, such as those linked to environmental, social, and governance
(ESG) targets. Further updates are also made to the disclosure requirements for equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts (effective January 1, 2026 in Pakistan, as directed by SECP vide SRO
1715(1)/2023):

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of Insurance contracts within the scope of the Standard. The objective of IFRS 17 is to ensure
that an entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts. This information
gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that insurance contracts have on the
entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. SECP vide its SRO 1715(1)/2023 dated
November 21, 2023 has directed that IFRS 17 shall be followed for the period commencing January 1, 2026
by companies engaged in insurance / takaful and re-insurance / re-takaful business.

Annual Improvements — Volume Eleven (effective January 1, 2026):

- Hedge Accounting by a First-time Adopter (Amendments to IFRS 1) - The amendments are intended
to address potential confusion arising from an inconsistency between the wording in IFRS 1 and the
requirements for hedge accounting in IFRS 9.

- Gain or Loss on Derecognition (Amendments to IFRS 7) - To update the language on unobservable
inputs and to include a cross reference to paragraphs 72 and 73 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.

- Introduction (Amendments to Guidance on implementing IFRS 7) - To clarify that the guidance does
not necessarily illustrate all the requirements in the referenced paragraphs of IFRS 7, nor does it create
additional requirements.

- Disclosure of Deferred Difference between Fair Value and Transaction Price (Amendments to Guidance
on implementing IFRS 7) - Paragraph 1G14 of the Guidance on implementing IFRS 7 has been amended
mainly to make the wording consistent with the requirements in paragraph 28 of IFRS 7 and with the
concepts and terminology used in IFRS 9 and IFRS 13.

- Credit Risk Disclosures (Amendments to Guidance on implementing IFRS 7) - Paragraph 1G20B of the
Guidance on implementing IFRS 7 has been amended to simplify the explanation of which aspects of
the IFRS requirements are not illustrated in the example.

- Transaction Price (Amendments to IFRS 9) - Paragraph 5.1.3 of IFRS 9 has been amended to replace
the reference to 'transaction price as defined by IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers' with
'the amount determined by applying IFRS 15'. The use of the term "transaction price' in relation to
IFRS 15 was potentially confusing and so it has been removed. The term was also deleted from Appendix
A of IFRS 9.
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- Determination of a 'De Facto Agent' (Amendments to IFRS 10) - The amendment is intended to remove
the inconsistency with the requirement in paragraph B73 for an entity to use judgement to determine
whether other parties are acting as de facto agents.

- Cost Method (Amendments to IAS 7) - Paragraph 37 of IAS 7 has been amended to replace the term
‘cost method' with 'at cost', following the prior deletion of the definition of 'cost method'.

The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations have not been
early adopted by the Company and are not likely to have any material impact on the Company's financial
statements.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, IASB has also issued the following
standards and interpretation, which have not been notified locally or declared exempt by the SECP as at
June 30, 2025:

IFRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

The new standard on presentation and disclosure in financial statements, IFRS 18, focuses on updates to
the statement of profit or loss. It introduces key concepts such as the structure of the statement of profit
or loss, required disclosures for certain profit or loss performance measures reported outside the financial
statements (management-defined performance measures), and enhanced principles on aggregation and
disaggregation applicable to the primary financial statements and notes.

Major Impact on Companies’ Financial Statements:

IFRS 18 will require the Company to restructure their statement of profit or loss into operating, investing,
and financing categories, which may alter familiar subtotals such as operating profit. This standard focuses
on disaggregation will expand disclosures, requiring more detailed breakdowns of income, expenses, and
significant transactions, rather than broad groupings. Adoption will also demand updates to reporting
systems and processes, increasing compliance effort, but ultimately enhancing transparency, comparability,
and investor confidence.

IFRS 19 — Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

IFRS 19 — Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures introduces reduced disclosure requirements
for eligible subsidiaries that apply IFRS Accounting Standards. It applies to subsidiaries without public
accountability whose parent prepares publicly available consolidated IFRS financial statements. Recognition
and measurement remain fully aligned with IFRS, while disclosures are significantly simplified. The standard
aims to ease the reporting burden without compromising the usefulness of information, and adoption is
voluntary.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.




3.2

Annual Report 2025

A - Leases other than short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
(a) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.
(b) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless
they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

B - Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to those leases where the nature of the
underlying asset is such that, when new, the asset is typically not of low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.
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The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant,
measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing
market interest rates.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations,
public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the
carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such
changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognised provision is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognised as part of cost of an asset.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events,
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or 'at fair value through profit or loss'
(FVTPL). A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and
net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or have
expired or when the cash flows relating to the financial liability have been substantially modified.
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Property, plant and equipment and Investment property
Operating assets

Operating assets are stated at cost (including where relevant related borrowing cost) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except for free hold land and capital spare which are stated
at cost. Depreciation on additions is charged for the month the asset is put to use and no depreciation is
charged in the month of disposal.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to profit and loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on disposal of assets, if any, are included in income currently.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss applying the straight line method using the useful lives and
residual values specified below:

Asset class Useful lives Residual values
(Years) (% of cost)

Factory building 21.5-235 -
Non-factory building 21.5-235 -

Plant, machinery and equipment 25-43 5
Quarry transport equipment 8-10 5
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 0-5
Motor vehicles 5 10

Useful lives, depreciation methods and residual values are reassessed annually and change, if any, is applied
prospectively.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost including, where relevant, related financing costs less impairment
losses, if any. These costs are transferred to operating fixed assets as and when they are available for use.

Capital spares

Items of spare parts are classified as capital spares when they meet in the definition of property, plant and
equipment provided in the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. Such
items are transferred to operating fixed assets when they are commissioned into the corresponding item
of plant or machinery (i.e. when they are replaced against worn out, obsolete or damaged parts).

Investment property
Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditures including major renewals and improvements are capitalised only when it is
probable that respective future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company
and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, while maintenance and normal repairs are charged to
the statement of profit or loss, as and when incurred.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Disposal of investment property is recognised when significant risk and rewards,
incidental to the ownership of that asset, have been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses are determined
by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount of the relevant assets. These are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Gains or losses on disposal of investment properties, if
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any, are included in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

The carrying values of investment properties are reviewed at each reporting date for indications that an
asset may be impaired and carrying values may not be recovered. If such indications exist and where the
carrying values exceeds the estimated recoverable amounts, the asset is written down to the recoverable
amounts. The recoverable amount of investment properties is the greater of fair value less cost to sell and
value in use.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the recoverable amount of investment properties since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the investment properties does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the investment properties in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Long term investments
Investment in subsidiary

In these financial statements, investment in subsidiary is carried at its cost less accumulated impairment
loss recognized thereon (if any).

Investment in associates

The Company accounts for its investments in associates using the equity method. Under this method, the
investment is initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of consideration given and includes acquisition
charges associated with such investments. Subsequently, the Company's share in profit / loss of the investee
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Distributions received from the investee reduce the carrying
amount of the investment. Adjustment to the carrying amount are also made for changes in the Company's
proportionate interest in the investee arising from changes in the investee's other comprehensive income.

Where the Company's share of loss of an associates equals or exceeds its interest in the associates, the
Company discontinues to recognize its share of further losses except to the extent that Company has
incurred legal or constructive obligation to make payment on behalf of the associates. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Company resumes recognizing its share of those profits only after its
share of the profit equals the share of losses not recognized.

Intangible assets - Computer software

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Amortization is
computed using the straight-line method over asset's estimated useful life at the rates stated in note 15.1

Amortization is charged from the date the assets are available for use while no amortization is charged
after the date when the assets are disposed off.

Gain and losses on disposal of such assets, if any, are included in the statement of profit or loss.

Stores and spares

These are valued under the moving average cost method (less impairment loss if any) other than stores
and spares in transit which are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon less

impairment loss if any.

Provisions are made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving inventory based on
management's best estimate regarding their future usability.
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Stock-in-trade
Basis of valuation

All items of stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and their net realizable value as of the reporting
date.

Determination of cost

The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable by the entity from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling
and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of finished goods, materials and services. Trade
discounts and other similar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the quantity of production, such as
direct labour. They also include a systematic allocation of fixed and variable production overheads that are
incurred in converting materials into finished goods. The allocation of fixed production overheads to the
costs of conversion is based on the normal operating capacity of the production facilities (which is the
production expected to be achieved on average over a number of days under normal circumstances, taking
into account the loss of capacity resulting from planned maintenance).

The cost of the items consumed or sold and those held in stock at the reporting date is determined as
follows:

Item of stock in trade Method of valuation

Raw Materials First-in-first-out (FIFO) method

Packing materials First-in-first-out (FIFO) method

Work-in-process Weighted average cost determined on a quarterly basis
Finished goods Weighted average cost determined on a quarterly basis

Determination of net realizable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories may not be
recoverable if those inventories are damaged, if they have become wholly or partially obsolete, or if their
selling prices have declined. The cost of inventories may also not be recoverable if the estimated costs of
completion or the estimated costs to be incurred to make the sale have increased.

The Company estimates the net realisable value of inventories based on the most reliable evidence available,
at the reporting date, of the amount the inventories are expected to realise. These estimates take into
consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the reporting
period to the extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below
cost if the finished product in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.
However, when a decline in the price of materials indicates that the cost of the finished product exceeds
net realisable value, the materials are written down to net realisable value. In such circumstances, the
replacement cost of the materials is used as the measure of their net realisable value.
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A new assessment is made of net realisable value in each subsequent period. When the circumstances that
previously caused inventories to be written down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence
of an increase in net realisable value because of changed economic circumstances, the amount of the write-
down is reversed (i.e. the reversal is limited to the amount of the original write-down) so that the new
carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised net realisable value.

Trade debts

These are carried at their transaction price less any allowance for lifetime expected credit losses. A receivable
is recognized when the goods are delivered to dealers as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances and short term borrowings from banks which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Financial assets
Initial recognition, classification and measurement

The Company recognizes a financial asset when and only when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument evidencing investment. The Company classifies its financial assets into either
of following three categories:

(a) financial assets measured at amortized cost.
(b) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
(c) fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within business model whose objective is to hold
assets to collect contractual cash flows, and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue thereof.

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income when it is held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue thereof.

(c) Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, as aforesaid. However, for an investment
in equity instrument which is not held for trading, the Company may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment.
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Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value.
3.12.2 Subsequent measurement

(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (determined using the effective interest
method) less accumulated impairment losses.

Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses arising from such
financial assets are recognized in profit or loss.

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI
These are subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated impairment losses.

A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in
accordance is recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset is derecognised or reclassified. When the
financial asset is derecognised the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. Interest is calculated
using the effective interest method and is recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Net gains or losses arising from remeasurement of such financial assets as well as any interest income
accruing thereon are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. However, for an investment in equity
instrument which is not held for trading and for which the Company has made an irrevocable election
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment,
such gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. Further, when such investment
is disposed off, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
not reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

3.12.3 Impairment

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses in respect of financial assets measured
at amortised cost.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the IFRS 9 'Simplified Approach' to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance.

For other financial assets, the Company applies the IFRS 9 'General Approach' to measuring expected credit
losses whereby the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. However, if, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses.

The Company measures expected credit losses on financial assets in a way that reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount, time value of money and reasonable and supportable information at the
reporting date about the past events, current conditions and forecast of future economic conditions. The
Company recognises in profit or loss, as an impairment loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 69




3.124

3.13

3.14

3.15

(/| FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

Annual Report 2025

reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

The Company directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle liability simultaneously.

Revenue
Revenue from local sales

Revenue from sale of goods (cement) is recognized when the customer obtains control of the goods, being
when the goods are delivered to the dealer, the dealer has full discretion over the selling price of the goods
subject to maximum retail price printed on bag and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
dealer's acceptance of the goods. Delivery occurs when the goods have been dispatched from the Company
premises, the risk of loss has been transferred to the dealer, and either the dealer has accepted the goods
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have elapsed, or the Company has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The Company does not expect to have contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised
goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Revenue from export sales

Revenue from sale of goods to foreign customers is recognized when those customers obtain control of
the exported goods.

The Company does not expect to have contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised
goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Other income

Interest income

Mark-up on TFC's, loans and bank deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis on the principal
amount outstanding and at the rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividends received from investment measured using the equity method of accounting are recognized in
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profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. As a consequence, actuarial risk (that benefits will be less than expected) and investment
risk (that assets will be insufficient to meet expected benefits) fall, in substance, on the employee.

The Company operates a funded provident scheme for its employees which is classified as a defined
contribution plan. Equal monthly contributions are made by the Company and the employees to the plan
at the rate equal to 10% of their basic salary plus cost of living allowance.

When an employee has rendered service to the Company during a period, the Company recognises the
contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service as an expense in profit or
loss and as a liability in the statement of financial position (payable to provident fund), after deducting any
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for service before
the end of the reporting period, the Company recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.

Compensated absences

The Company recognizes provision for compensated absences on an undiscounted basis as the impact of
discounting is not material and are expensed as the related services are provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid under compensated absences if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

The un-availed leaves are payable to employees at the time of retirement/termination of service. The
provision is determined on the basis of last drawn salary and accumulated leaves balance at the reporting
date.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Rupees at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Rupees at the rate of
exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date. All exchange differences arising on transaction
are charged to the statement of profit or loss in that period.

Levies and Taxation

Levies

A levy is an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits imposed by the government that does not
meet the definition of income tax provided in the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12 'Income Taxes'
because it is not based on taxable profit.

In these financial statements, levy includes minimum tax under section 113 or other sections of Income

tax ordinance, Income tax under final tax regime, provison for workers' welfare fund and workers' profit
participation fund. The corresponding effect of levy other than worker's welfare fund expense and workers
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profit participation, advance tax paid has been netted off and the net position is shown in the statement
of financial position.

Current tax

In these financial statements , minimum tax on local sales revenue is recognized as levy under section 113
of the Income Tax Ordinance and other sections of the said ordinance. Any excess charged under the normal
tax regime is recognized as current tax.

In these financial statements , Income tax under final tax regime is recognized as levy and the excess amount
charged is recognized as current tax.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses and credits
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences
and unused tax losses and credits.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

2025 2024 2025 2024
(Number of Shares) Rupees in '000'
45,600,000 45,600,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 456,000 456,000
issued as fully paid in cash
4,560,000 4,560,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 45,600 45,600
issued as fully paid bonus shares
50,160,000 50,160,000 501,600 501,600

There are no agreements among shareholders in respect of voting rights, board selection, right of first
refusal and block voting.
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Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000—

LONG TERM FINANCING FROM A
BANKING COMPANY - secured

Financing under SBP schemes

Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy 5.1 204,148 271,903
Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) 5.2 322,781 373,585
526,929 645,488

Other financing arrangements

Term Finance Il - 32,820
Diminishing Musharka Facility 53 35,629 -
35,629 32,820
562,558 678,308
Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy - secured
Opening balance 370,083 439,329
Interest recognized on unwinding of the liability 33 30,634 37,250
Loan installments paid during the year (102,398) (106,496)
Closing carrying amount - net of deferred grant 298,319 370,083
Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities 12 (94,171) (98,180)
Non-current maturity 204,148 271,903

In the year 2021, the Company availed a long term financing facility amounting to Rs. 500.212 million from
M/s. Askari Bank Limited under the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP's) Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy
notified vide IH & SMEFD Circular No. 10 of 2019 dated July 26, 2019. The facility is secured by first pari
passu charge, of Rs. 673.33 million, over all fixed assets of the Company, at 25% margin.

The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows:
(a) The applicable markup rate is 5% per annum;

(b) The tenor of each tranche of the facility is 8 years (including 2-year grace period commencing from the
date of the disbursement of the funds); and

(c) Each tranche of the loan is to be repaid in 24 equal quarterly instalments.

Since the facility carries an interest rate which is well below the market interest rate prevailing as on the
date of disbursement of funds, the financing is considered to contain an element of government grant as
per the IAS 20 'Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance'. Accordingly,
the Company measured the loan liability at its fair value (determined on a present value basis) and recognized
the difference between the disbursement proceeds received from the bank and the said fair value as
deferred income in the statement of financial position. This deferred income is being recognized as other
income in profit or loss in proportion to the recognition of interest cost on the outstanding loan balance
(based on the effective interest rate method).
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Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF)

Opening balance 469,022 489,605
Interest on unwinding of liability 33 46,117 51,093
Payment during the year (99,900) (71,676)

415,239 469,022
Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities 12 (92,458) (95,437)
Non-current maturity 322,781 373,585

This represents long term financing facility amounting to Rs. 622.786 million from M/s. Askari Bank Limited
under the SBP's Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) notified vide IH & SMEFD Circular No. 1 of
2020 dated March 17, 2020. The facility is secured by first pari passu charge amounting to Rs 1,460 million
over present and future current and fixed assets of the Company (including land, building, plant and

machinery) located at plant Sangjani District, Islamabad @ 25% margin.
The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows:
(a) The applicable markup rate is 4% per annum;

(b) The tenor of the each tranche of the facility is 10 years (including 2-year grace period commencing
from the date of disbursement of the funds); and

(c) Each tranche of the loan is to be repaid in 32 equal quarterly instalments.

Since the facility carries the markup rate below the prevailing market interest rate, in accordance with a
technical opinion issued by the Accounting Standards Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) in November 2020, the financing is considered to contain an element of government grant
as per the IAS 20 'Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance'. Accordingly,
at initial recognition, the Company measured the loan liability at its fair value (determined on a present
value basis) and recognized the difference between the disbursement proceeds received from the bank
and the said fair value as deferred government grant in the statement of financial position. This deferred
grant is being recognized as income in profit or loss in proportion to the recognition of interest cost on the
outstanding loan balance (based on the effective interest rate method).

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

Diminishing Musharka Facility

Opening carrying amount - -

Facilities received during the year 59,936 -
Less: Installments paid during the year (16,403) -
43,533 -
Non-current maturity 35,629 -
Current maturity shown under current liabilities 12 7,904 -
43,533 -

The Company entered into a diminishing musharka of Rs. 50 million (2024: nil) for purchase of non-
commercial vehicles with the non-banking financial institution . The arrangement carries profit at the rate
of 3M KIBOR + 2% with monthly rental repayments. The arrangement is for a tenure of five years from the
date of disbursement.
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The arrangement is secured against the following:

- Vehicles to be registered in the name of Financial institution.

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

LEASE LIABILITY

Opening balance 39,620 76,298
Interest on unwinding of the liability 33 3,705 9,931
Lease rentals paid during the year (27,674) (46,609)

15,651 39,620
Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities (15,512) (27,335)
Non-current maturity 139 12,285

DEFERRED INCOME - GOVERNMENT GRANT

Opening balance 140,538 184,545
Less: Amortized for the year 35 (38,478) (44,007)

102,060 140,538
Less: Current maturity shown under current liability (32,430) (38,471)
Non-current maturity 69,630 102,067

DEFERRED TAXATION - net

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and
the law allows net settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the statement of financial position as
follows:

(Restated)

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000—

Deferred tax liability arising in respect of :

- Accelerated tax depreciation 565,951 391,402
- Financing under SBP refinance scheme 38,934 40,332
- Right-of-use assets and related lease liability 3,555 1,897
608,440 433,631
Deferred tax asset arising in respect of :
- Provision against slow moving and obsolete spares (6,558) (5,073)
- Provision for expected credit losses (411) -
- Deferred government grant (37,762) (40,228)
- Minimum tax (254,041) (183,632)
- Alternate corporate tax (56,418) -
- Unused business tax losses 58 -
- Unabsorbed tax depreciation losses - (138,964)
(355,132) (367,897)
253,308 65,734
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Deferred tax asset in respect of minimum tax

Deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. nil (2024: Rs. 199.049 million) has not been recognized in respect of
the minimum tax under section 113 because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom.

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors for goods and services:

-Creditors other than associated company 928,695 1,282,424
-Associated company 29,736 75,443
958,431 1,357,867
Accrued expenses 43,770 11,629
Provision for marking fee 9.1 97,781 86,243
Provision for compensated absences 9.2 56,082 25,816
Payable to provident fund - 5,351
Worker's Profit Participation Fund payable 9.3 58,023 39,563
Worker's Welfare Fund payable 9.4 14,356 -
Advances from customers and dealers - unsecured 9.5 159,301 132,210
Token money 9.6 200,000 -
Security deposits payable 9.7 11,290 10,515
Excise duty payable 96,667 136,874
Sales tax payable 156,205 94,881
Withholding income tax 8,613 12,088
Other liabilities 1,504 42,047
1,862,023 1,955,084

This represents an amount payable to Pakistan Standards & Quality Control Authority (PSQCA) under the
PSQCA Act, 1996. The Company is in an industry-wide dispute on the basis of calculation of marking fee
and has not made payments against marking fee for the period from July 2007 till the reporting date.

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

Provision for compensated absences

Opening balance 25,816 29,071
Charge for the year - net of reversals 35,261 3,991
Payments made during the year (4,995) (7,246)
Closing balance 56,082 25,816

Worker's Profit Participation Fund payable

Opening balance 39,563 -
Payments made during the year (39,563) -
Charge for the year 36 58,023 39,563
Closing balance 58,023 39,563
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Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

Worker's Welfare Fund payable

Opening balance - 31,047
Less: adjusted against prior period income tax refunds - (31,047)
Charge for the year 14,356 -
Closing balance 14,356 -

During the year, the performance obligations underlying the opening contract liability of Rs. 132.21 million
were satisfied in full. Accordingly, the said liability was recorded as revenue during the year.

Information regarding the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations underlying the closing contract
liability of Rs. 159.3 million is not presented since the expected duration of all the contracts entered into
with the customers is less than one year.

This represents interest free deposit received as token money with an offer to purchase the investment
property. The company has not accepted the offer till the close of the year. The offer is expected to be
considered in the meeting of the Board to be held in the following year.

The Company has not utilized any amount from the security deposits collected from cement dealers for
its business purposes.

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - secured

Running Finance 10.1 334,412 685,513
Export Re-Finance 10.2 50,000 50,000
384,412 735,513

The Company has a total finance facility of Rs. 810 million (2024: Rs. 810 million) from various banks.
These arrangements are secured by way of first pari passu charge over all the Company's movable and
immovable properties and hypothecation of Company's stock-in-trade, stores and spares, book debts,
machinery. The rate of mark-up ranges from 3-Month KIBOR plus 1% to 3-Month KIBOR plus 2% (2024:
3-Month KIBOR plus 1% to 3-Month KIBOR plus 1.5%) per annum. The validity of these facilities ranges
from September 28, 2025 to March 31, 2026.

The Company has obtained Export Refinance Facility of Rs. 50 million (2024: Rs. 200 million) from a
commercial bank. The facility is secured by way of first pari passu charge on current and fixed assets
(including land and building, plant and machinery) of the Company inclusive of 25% margin located at
Sangjani plant, District Islamabad. The facility carries mark-up at State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) policy rate
minus 3.00% per annum (2024: SBP rate plus 1.00%). The facility is valid upto upto February 28, 2026.

As of reporting date, the Company had unutilized facilities for short term borrowings available from various
banks amounting to Rs. 875.588 Million including FATR (2024: Rs. 624.486 million).

Note 2025 2024
ACCRUED MARK-UP Rupees in ‘000——
- Short term borrowing 6,917 32,537
- Long term borrowing - 6,051
- Lease liability - 111
6,917 38,699
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Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000—

12. CURRENT MATURITY OF LONG TERM
FINANCING - Secured

Financing under SBP schemes

Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy 5.1 94,171 98,180
Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) 5.2 92,458 95,437
186,629 193,617
Other financing facilities
Term Finance Il - 68,621
Diminishing Musharka Facility 53 7,904 -
7,904 68,621
194,533 262,238

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
13.1 Contingencies

13.1.1 Contingent liabilities existing as at the reporting date

(a) The Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) passed an order on August 27, 2009 and imposed a
penalty on all cement manufacturers of the country on the alleged ground of formation of cartel for
marketing arrangement. The amount of penalty imposed on the Company was Rs. 174.063 million. The
Company challenged the constitutionality of the Competition Act, 2010 before the Honorable Lahore
High Court (LHC) and the order dated August 27, 2009 passed by the CCP on merits.

The LHC vide its order dated October 26, 2020 dismissed the petitions filed by the Company together
with other petitioners and declared the competition law intra vires. The LHC, however, struck down
the constitution of Competition Appellate Tribunal (CAT) as being unconstitutional. The Judgment of
the Lahore High Court has been challenged by the Company as well as the CCP before the Supreme
Court of Pakistan. The Supreme Court has been pleased to grant leave in the petitions and have
converted them in Civil Appeals. The Appeals remain pending adjudication before the Supreme Court.

The constitution of CAT has also been challenged by the Company before the High Court of Sindh (SHC),
which had earlier, via order dated January 02, 2018, restrained CAT from passing any final order in the
Appeals filed against the CCP's order dated August 27, 2009. Subsequently, on February 24, 2025, the
Honorable SHC vacated the interim stay order previously granted on petitions filed by various cement
manufacturers and the All Pakistan Cement Manufacturers Association in relation to the penalties
imposed by the CCP. The Company, along with other cement manufacturers, continues to actively
pursue its defense. Based on the legal opinion obtained, management believes that there are reasonable
grounds to contest the matter, and accordingly, no provision has been recognized in these financial
statements.

(b) Certain matters other than those disclosed in these financial statements, are pending at various
authorities and courts of law. The management is of the view that the outcome of those is expected
to be favourable and a liability, if any, arising at the conclusion of those cases is not likely to be material.

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

13.2 Commitments

As of the reporting date, the outstanding financial
commitments of the company were as follows:

- In respect of import of stores and spares 79,549 69,842

- Letter of guarantee in favour of Sui Northern Gas
Pipeline Limited (SNGPL) - 110,000
79,549 179,842

<ECT,
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating Assets

Capital Work in Progress

Capital Spares

14.1 Operating assets

As at June 30, 2023
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

For the year ended June 30, 2024
Opening net book value
Additions during the year
Transfer from capital spares
Other additions

Transfer from Right of use asset
-Cost
-Accumulated depreciation

Disposals:
-Cost
-Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation for the year
Closing net book value

As at June 30, 2024
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

For the year ended June 30, 2025
Opening net book value
Additions during the year
Transfer from CWIP

Transfer from capital spares
Other additions

Disposals:
-Cost
-Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation for the year
Closing net book value

As at June 30, 2025
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Useful life (in years)
eCr,
o
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Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000———
14.1 2,698,268 2,370,613
14.2 45,633 140,903
14.3 396,281 422,959
3,140,182 2,934,475

Quarry Furniture,
Freehold Factory Non-factory Plant and transport fixtures & Motor Total
Land building building machinery equipments equipments Vehicles
Rupees in 000
83,651 327,715 243,635 4,709,822 131,860 76,076 78,120 5,650,879
- (286,985) (131,747) (2,616,817) (124,794) (63,739) (67,828) (3,291,910)
83,651 40,730 111,888 2,093,005 7,066 12,337 10,292 2,358,969
83,651 40,730 111,888 2,093,005 7,066 12,337 10,292 2,358,969
- - - 51,578 - 9,577 - 61,155
- - - 54,082 - 1,508 135 55,725
- - - 105,660 - 11,085 135 116,880
- - - - - - 38,958 38,958
- - - - - - (34,050) (34,050)
- - - - - - 4,908 4,908
- - - (21,834) - - (12,147) (33,981)
- - - 15,983 - - 9,920 25,903
- - - (5,851) - - (2,227) (8,078)
- (5,177) (8,305) (82,532) (684) (4,832) (536) (102,066)
83,651 35,553 103,583 2,110,282 6,382 18,590 12,572 2,370,613
83,651 327,715 243,635 4,793,648 131,860 87,161 105,066 5,772,736
- (292,162) (140,052) (2,683,366) (125,478) (68,571) (92,494) (3,402,123)
83,651 35,553 103,583 2,110,282 6,382 18,590 12,572 2,370,613
83,651 35,553 103,583 2,110,282 6,382 18,590 12,572 2,370,613
- - - 324,411 - - - 324,411
- - - 21,623 - - - 21,623
- - - 8,082 - 19,699 70,306 98,087
- - - 354,116 - 19,699 70,306 444,121
_ N - - - - (7,532) (7,532)
- - - - - - 6,778 6,778
- - - - - - (754) (754)
- (5,177) (8,305) (88,503) (102) (6,155) (7,470) (115,712)
83,651 30,376 95,278 2,375,895 6,280 32,134 74,654 2,698,268
83,651 327,715 243,635 5,147,764 131,860 106,860 167,840 6,209,325
- (297,339) (148,357) (2,771,869) (125,580) (74,726) (93,186) (3,511,057)
83,651 30,376 95,278 2,375,895 6,280 32,134 74,654 2,698,268
21.5-23.5 21.5-23.5 25-43 8-10 3-10 5

‘;
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Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

14.1.1 Allocation of depreciation expense

Manufacturing costs 30.1.3 100,392 93,459
Administrative expenses 31 9,739 3,320
Distribution costs 32 5,581 5,287

115,712 102,066

14.1.2 Freehold land represents 237.64 acres of land situated at Sangjani Village Sangjani, Islamabad on which
factory and non factory buildings are constructed. The property is utilized as manufacturing facility for the
production of cement.

Further, it comprises land of 1,598.33 sq. yds. situated at House # 339, West Ridge 1, Peshawar road,
Rawalpindi. The property is utilized as marketing office of the Company.

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

14.2  Capital work in progress

Opening Balance 140,903 -

Additions during the year

- Transfers from capital spares 14.3.1 54,819 84,799

- Other additions 174,322 56,104
229,141 140,903

Transfer to operating fixed assets 14.1 (324,411) -

Closing Balance 45,633 140,903

14.3  Capital Spares

Capital spares 14.3.1 383,401 422,959
Capital spares in-transit 12,880 -
396,281 422,959
14.3.1 Capital Spares
Opening Balance 48 422,959 333,226
Additions during the year 36,884 235,687
459,843 568,913
Transfers to capital work in progress 14.2 (54,819) (84,799)
Transfers to operating fixed assets 14.1 (21,623) (61,155)
(76,442) (145,954)
Closing Balance 383,401 422,959
15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - Computer software
Addition during the year 14,102 -
Amortization for the year (1,411) -
Closing net book values 15.1 12,691 -
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Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

15.1  Breakup of book value

Cost 14,102 -
Accumulated amortization (1,411) -
Net book value 12,691 -
Annual rates of amortisation 10% -

16. Right-of-use-Assets

Rented Leased
property in vehicles Total
Karachi (Note 16.2)
As at June 30, 2023
Cost 69,636 78,187 147,823
Accumulated depreciation (28,422) (42,589) (71,011)
41,214 35,598 76,812
Movement during the year
ended June 30, 2024
Opening net book value 41,214 35,598 76,812
Disposal:
Cost - (38,958) (38,958)
Accumulated depreciation - 34,050 34,050
- (4,908) (4,908)
Depreciation for the year (13,927) (11,729) (25,656)
Closing net book value 27,287 18,961 46,248
As at June 30, 2024
Cost 69,636 39,229 108,865
Accumulated depreciation (42,349) (20,268) (62,617)
27,287 18,961 46,248
Movement during the year
ended June 30, 2025
Opening net book value 27,287 18,961 46,248
Depreciation for the year (13,928) (7,060) (20,988)
Closing net book value 13,359 11,901 25,260
As at June 30, 2025
Cost 69,636 39,229 108,865
Accumulated depreciation (56,277) (27,328) (83,605)
WDV as at June 30, 2025 13,359 11,901 25,260
Depreciation rate (per annum) 20% 20%
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16.1 The terms and conditions of the lease contracts entered into for rented properties are as follows:
Particulars Rented property in Karachi
Lease agreement date 5-Mar-21
Lease commencement date 15-Jul-21
Initial contracted term of the lease 11 Months
Availability of extension option Yes
Assessed lease term 5 years
16.2 The terms and conditions of the lease contracts entered into for vehicles are as follows:
Lease contract Availability First Last Total Rental Mark up Nuture of the Number of
no. Lessor name of extension | installment | installment number of payment rate leased assets the leased
option payable on | payable on installments frequency assets
122010500002 Askari Bank Limited No 29-Nov-20 29-Oct-25 60 Monthly 6 month KIBOR + 2% Motor Vehicles 1
122012500002 Askari Bank Limited No 21-Jan-21 21-Dec-25 60 Monthly 6 month KIBOR + 2% Motor Vehicles 3
122104500006 Askari Bank Limited No 23-Jul-21 23-Jun-26 60 Monthly 6 month KIBOR + 2% Motor Vehicles 8
122107500005 Askari Bank Limited No 30-Aug-21 30-Jul-26 60 Monthly 6 month KIBOR + 2% Motor Vehicles 1
122107500004 Askari Bank Limited No 30-Aug-21 30-Jul-26 60 Monthly 6 month KIBOR + 2% Motor Vehicles 1
Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——
16.3  Allocation of depreciation expense
Manufacturing costs 30.1.3 3,476 3,519
Administrative expenses 31 15,614 19,792
Distribution costs 32 1,898 2,346
20,988 25,657
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Freehold land 17.1 102,260 102,260
17.1  This represents cost of 124.625 Kanals land located at Thalian near Airport Avenue Road Rawalpindi. The

("]l FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

latest valuation of the property was carried out by an independent valuer namely M/s. K.G Traders Private
Limited on September 4, 2025 and the cut-off date was June 30, 2025. As per the valuation report, the fair
value and forced sales value of the property were as follows:

Fair value Forced sales
—— Rupees in '000 —

Freehold land 336,500 286,025




18.

18.1

18.1.1

18.1.2

18.1.3

18.1.4

18.1.5
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Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

LONG TERM INVESTMENT

Fecto Cement Nooriabad (Private) Limited (subsidiary) 18.1 1,000 1,000
Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited (associate) 18.2 & 43.1 198,862 261,914
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) - 99,920

199,862 362,834

Investment in Fecto Cement Nooriabad (Private) Limited - a subsidiary

2025 2024 2025 2024
(Number of Shares) Rupees in ‘000’
100,000 100,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- 1,000 1,000

In February 2020, the Company got its new subsidiary company incorporated in the name and style of M/s.
Fecto Cement Nooriabad (Private) Limited ('FCNL'). The authorized and paid up capital of FCNL is Rs. 2
million and Rs. 1 million, respectively, which is presently wholly owned by the Company. The principal
activity of FCNL is to produce and deal in all kinds of cement and its allied products. The registered office
of FCNL Plot # 60-C, Khayaban-Shahbaz, Phase-VI, Defense Housing Authority, Karachi-75500. Mr. Mohammad
Yasin Fecto, the majority shareholder and director of the Company, also serves on the Board of Directors
of FCNL.

By the reporting date, FCNL had not yet commenced its operations which was principally due to delay
evidenced in granting of mining lease by the regulatory authorities. However, the management of FCNL
has been endeavouring to finalize its ongoing negotiations with the concerned government officials and
is hopeful that the said license will be issued in due course of time.

In accordance with the provisions of section 228(1) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company would be
required to prepare, consolidated financial statements of the group (comprising the Company and the
aforementioned subsidiary company) for the year ended June 30, 2023. However, keeping in view the fact
that FCNL has not yet commenced its business operations and, at the reporting date, it had no material
assets or liabilities, the Company, under section 228(7) of the Companies Act, 2017, applied to the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for seeking exemption from the requirement to prepare
consolidated financial statements. The said exemption has been granted by the SECP vide its letter
SMD/PRDD/Comp/(2)/2021/42 dated June 17, 2025 issued to the Company.

As per unaudited financial statements of FCNL for the year ended June 30, 2025, as of the reporting date,
FCNL had cash balance held in a bank account, amounting to Rs. 1.529 million (2024: Rs. 1.394 million)
(mainly representing the initial capital injection made by the Company in the form of equity) and accrued
liabilities amounting to Rs. 0.28 million (2024: Rs. 0.20 million). Further, during the year ended June 30,
2025, FCNL earned mark-up on bank deposit amounting to Rs. 0.159 million (2024: 0.259 million) and
incurred administrative and taxation expenses of Rs. 0.077 million (2024: Rs. 0.125 million) and Rs. 0.024
million (2024: 0.039 million), respectively.

The unaudited financial statements of FCNL for the year ended June 30, 2025, as well as the unaudited
financial statements of FCNL for the year ended June 30, 2024, shall be available for inspection at the
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registered office of the Company and shall be sent to the members on request without any cost.
18.2 Investment in Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited - an associate

18.2.1 In 2019, the Company made an investment in 15 million unquoted ordinary shares of M/s. Frontier Papers
Products (Private) Limited (FPPL), its associated company in terms of section 2(4) of the Companies Act,
2017, at a par value of Rs. 10 each. This investment gives the Company 49.21% voting power in FPPL. The
Company's arrangement with the associate entails diversification of business activities, and is part of its
strategic investment. FPPL is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of polypropylene bags used
for packing cement. The registered office is situated at Plot # 60-C, Khayaban-Shahbaz, Phase-VI, Defense
Housing Authority, Karachi.

2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

(a) Carrying amount of the investment
and changes therein

Cost of investment: 15,000,000 shares of Rs.10/- each 150,000 150,000

Accumulated share of profit / (loss):

Opening balance 111,914 94,811

Share of other comprehensive income of associate - net of tax (2,091) (1,798)

Share of profit / (loss) for the year (60,961) 18,901
48,862 111,914

Carrying amount as of the reporting date 198,862 261,914

(b) Summarized financial information of the associate

Based on its audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025, the summarized financial
information of M/s. Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited is as under:

2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000—

Current assets 348,483,574 505,860,277
Non-current assets 843,909,327 902,788,626
Current liabilities 438,610,455 487,560,638
Non-current liabilities 175,415,601 214,599,733
Revenue 924,140,000 1,232,056,100
(Loss) / profit after tax for the year (123,871,965) 38,409,511
Other comprehensive loss for the year (4,249,726) (3,652,889)
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (128,121,691) 34,756,622
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18.2.2 During the year ended June 30, 2025, FPPL did not declare any dividends (2024: None).

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000———

19. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Long term deposits 19.1 10,901 10,101

19.1 This includes security deposits maintained with certain government authorities and suppliers / vendors
of the Company.

(Restated)
Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000*

20. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Long term loan - unsecured, considered good

Employees - interest free 3,507 4,342
Executives - interest free 20.1 2,189 1,005
5,696 5,347
Advance to software house - 9,852
Advance to dealers - secured, considered good 500 500
6,196 15,699
Less: Current maturity shown under current assets (3,231) (3,308)
2,965 12,391

20.1 Theloans to executives and employees are in accordance with the terms of their employment. The maximum
aggregate amount due from executives of the Company (by reference to month-end balances) amounted
to Rs. 2.561 million (2024: Rs. 1.708 million).

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000"

21. STORES AND SPARES

Stores - in hand 21.1 & 48 619,367 684,371
- in transit 1,442 4,232
620,809 688,603

Spares 785,296 816,428
Provision against slow moving and obsolete spares (17,723) (17,723)
767,573 798,705

1,388,382 1,487,308

21.1  As of the reporting date, no inventory is pledged with the Financial Institutions (2024: Nil).
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23.

24,

24.1

25.

(W FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

Annual Report 2025

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material 48 & 30.1.1 1,701,674 1,239,330
Packing material 30.1.2 60,057 68,930
1,761,731 1,308,260
Work-in-process 48 231,432 597,139
Finished goods 30 95,995 94,240
2,089,158 1,999,639

As of the reporting date, no inventory is pledged with the Financial Institutions (2024: Nil).

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Local receivables

Total trade debts outstanding - gross 570,746 479,890
Provision for expected credit losses (1,110) (1,110)
569,636 478,780

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS - unsecured

Unquoted debt securities
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) 24.1 & 48 49,930 -
49,930 -

This represents investment in 20,000 unsecured, privately placed Term Finance Certificates (TFCs), @ 6-
month KIBOR plus 1.85%, issued by M/s. Silk Bank Limited, on August 8th, 2007.

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

SHORT TERM LOAN TO A RELATED PARTY

Loan to Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited

Opening balance 19,990 70,895
Loan repaid during the year - (50,905)
19,990 19,990

QECTQ
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25.1

25.2

25.3

26.

26.1

26.2

27.
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In their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on December 01, 2018, the shareholders of the Company
resolved that an unsecured short term running finance facility (subject to the maximum limit of Rs. 100
million) be provided by the Company to M/s. Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited (FPPL), its related

party.

Further, as required by the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings)
Regulations, 2017, the rate of return on the above financing facility is the higher of the applicable KIBOR
rate and the borrowing cost of the Company.

Maximum loan outstanding during the year with reference to month-end balances amounted to Rs. 19.99
million (2024: Rs. 70.895 million).

(Restated)
Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000"

LOANS, ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLE

Advances 26.1 47,669 24,821
Other receivable - accrued markup 26.2 5,364 55,530
Deposit - margin against bank Guarantee - 11,000
Current portion of long term loans -unsecured,
considered good 20 3,231 3,308
Prepayments 32,499 1,541
88,763 96,200
Advances
Advance to suppliers of goods 46,344 24,585
Others 1,325 236
47,669 24,821

Other receivable - accrued markup

Markup receivable on loan to associated company 1,144 4,051

Markup receivable on term finance certificates 2,842 51,479

Markup receivable on bank deposits 1,378 -
5,364 55,530

TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

Income tax (payable) / refundable 27.1 - 21,442
Un-adjusted input sales tax carried forward 14,735 20,293
14,735 41,735
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Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

Income tax (payable) / refundable

Opening balance 21,442 76,233
Provision for current tax 37 (291,806) (208,425)
Taxes deducted at source 62,025 21,353
Tax paid during the year 186,955 132,281
Closing balance (21,384) 21,442

The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalized up to, and including, the tax year 2024.
Tax returns filed by the Company are deemed to be assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 unless selected for re-assessment or audit by the taxation authorities. However, at any time during
a period of five years from the date of filing of a return, the taxation authorities may select an income tax

return filed by the Company for the purpose of re-assessment.

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
In hand 851 975
Cash at bank
With banks in saving & deposit accounts 28.1 146,755 191,708
With banks in current accounts 104,600 88,564
251,355 280,272
252,206 281,247

The return on these balances ranges from 9% to 14% (2024: 17% to 19% ) per annum on daily product

basis.
Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——
SALES REVENUE - net
Revenue from Local Sales 29.1 10,849,405 10,767,088
Revenue from Export Sales 247,519 141,030
11,096,924 10,908,118
Revenue from Local Sales
Sales of goods to local customers - gross 16,724,412 14,857,636
Less: Trade Discount (203,659) (135,276)
Excise duty (2,763,268) (1,425,537)
Sales tax (2,908,080) (2,529,735)
(5,875,007) (4,090,548)
10,849,405 10,767,088

[ FECTO CEMENT LIMITED




Annual Report 2025

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000—

30. COST OF SALES

Opening stock of finished goods 94,240 104,221
Cost of goods manufactured 30.1 9,265,361 9,468,572
9,359,601 9,572,793
Closing stock of finished goods 22 (95,995) (94,240)
9,263,606 9,478,553

30.1 Cost of goods manufactured

Raw materials consumed 30.1.1 782,249 610,976
Packing materials consumed 30.1.2 560,413 594,988
Conversion cost incurred 30.1.3 7,556,992 8,242,169

8,899,654 9,448,133
Change in work-in-process inventory:

Opening work-in-process 597,139 617,578
Closing work-in-process 22 (231,432) (597,139)
365,707 20,439

9,265,361 9,468,572

30.1.1 Raw materials consumed

Opening stock 1,239,330 1,045,308
Purchases 1,244,593 804,998
2,483,923 1,850,306

Closing stock 22 (1,701,674) (1,239,330)
782,249 610,976

30.1.2 Packing materials consumed

Opening stock 68,930 33,788
Purchases 551,540 630,130
620,470 663,918
Closing stock 22 (60,057) (68,930)
560,413 594,988
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30.1.3

30.1.3.1

30.1.3.2

31.

Conversion cost incurred

Fuel and power

Salaries, wages and benefits
Depreciation on operating fixed assets
Stores and spares consumed
Vehicle running expenses
Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Loading charges

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Amortization

Other manufacturing overheads

Fuel and power

Coal Charges
Electricity Charges
Diesel Charges
Lubricant Charges
Others

Note

30.1.3.1
30.1.3.2
14.1.1

16.3
15
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2025

2024

Rupees in ‘000——

5,938,321 6,951,199
874,772 696,179
100,392 93,459
394,834 272,013

60,202 65,424
67,705 55,885
23,410 13,696
21,614 16,240
3,476 3,519
705 -
71,561 74,555

7,556,992 8,242,169

3,929,133 4,738,022

1,877,290 2,061,194

92,252 118,707
39,646 32,734

- 542
5,938,321 6,951,199

This includes Company's contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. 21.66 million (2024: Rs. 19.519

million).

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Vehicles running expenses

Utilities

Legal and professional charges
Initial expenditure on new project
Donations

Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation on operating fixed assets
Amortization

Traveling and conveyance
Communications

Printing and stationery

Rent, rates and taxes
Entertainment

Fees and subscription

Auditors' remuneration

Insurance

Miscellaneous
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Note

311
16.3

31.2

14.1.1
15

31.3

2025

2024

Rupees in ‘000——

289,894 212,331
15,614 19,792
23,254 20,661
18,426 18,260
11,284 21,098

2,074 8,657
7,628 6,443
5,672 3,738
9,739 3,320
416 -
7,281 9,289
4,791 4,667
3,331 3,006
1,089 1,336
3,797 2,400
5,021 2,387
2,420 2,200
312 309
20,348 6,441
432,391 346,335
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31.1 This includes Company's contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. 7.727 million (2024: Rs. 6.921
million).

31.2 None of the directors or their spouses have any interest in the donee institutions. There is no single party
to whom the donation exceeds the higher of 10% of the Company's total amount of donation expense
for the year or Rs. 1 million.

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——
31.3 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 1,650 1,500
Half yearly review 550 500
Other services 220 200
2,420 2,200
32. DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Salaries, wages and benefits 321 85,856 65,100
Marking fee 11,538 11,062
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 14.1.1 5,581 5,287
Vehicles running expenses 5,702 5,818
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 16.3 1,898 2,346
Amortization 15 290 -
Printing and stationary 2,702 4,067
Fuel and power 3,969 3,518
Communications 1,684 2,040
Entertainment 3,551 1,932
Rent, rates and taxes 2,495 2,458
Export expenses - 1,368
Repairs and maintenance 1,154 1,142
Spares and general items consumed 1,026 80
Traveling and conveyance 1,008 419
Transportation expense 10,652 -
Insurance 260 223
Advertisement - 99
Fees and subscription 307 56
Miscellaneous 101 123
139,774 107,138

32.1 This includes Company's contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. 3.116 million (2024: Rs.2.679
million) .
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Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

33. FINANCE COSTS

Markup on short term borrowings:

- Running finance 37,196 106,814
- Cash Finance 24,256 21,866
- Export Refinance Scheme 7,139 14,189
68,591 142,869
Markup on long term borrowing:
SBP Refinance Scheme for TERF Il 5.2 46,117 51,093
SBP Refinance Scheme for Renewable Energy 5.1 30,634 37,250
Markup on Term Finance Il 10,130 31,152
Diminishing Musharka Facility 5,435 -
92,316 119,495
Markup on leases 6 3,705 9,931
Bank commission and charges 7,578 3,879
172,190 276,174
34. OTHER EXPENSES
Provision against expected credit loss - 230
Provision against slow moving obsolete spares - 2,723
Stock written off 4,265 -
Unadjustable input tax written-off 5,558 -
9,823 2,953
(Restated)
Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000"
35. OTHER INCOME
Scrap sales 1,244 22,320
Amortization of deferred government grant 7 38,478 44,007
Markup income 35.2&43 48,519 44,870
Insurance claim 6,752 -
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 5,347 3,883
Liabilities no longer payable 35.1 41,907 -
Miscellaneous 25 -
142,272 115,080
35.1 Liabilities written off during the year represent stale cheques and long-outstanding payable balances

over five years old, which are no longer payable. The write-off is based on the lapse of the statutory
limitation period, making these obligations legally unenforceable.
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(Restated)
Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000"

35.2 Markup income

Markup on term finance certificates 15,562 23,743
Markup on loan to associated company 3,388 10,774
Markup on bank deposits 29,569 10,353
48,519 44,870
36. LEVIES
Excess of minimum tax over normal tax - 77,213
Income tax - Final tax regime - 1,398
- 78,611
Provision for Worker's Welfare Fund 9.4 14,356 -
Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund 9.3 58,023 39,563
72,379 118,174
37. TAXATION
Current 291,142 123,836
Prior 664 5,978
291,806 129,814
Deferred 43 187,574 222,991
479,380 352,805
37.1 Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit:
Profit before taxation 1,160,451 830,946
Tax at the applicable rate of 29% 336,531 240,974
Tax effect of:
- permanent difference (5,820) (16,649)
- income subject to taxation under final tax regime - (2,033)
- super tax under section 4C 95,806 65,917
- excess of minimum tax over corporate tax 2,587 77,213
- excess of alternate corporate tax over corporate tax 56,609 -
- prior year charge 664 5,978
Others (18,637) (18,595)
479,380 352,805

)i
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(Restated)
Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000"

EARNING PER SHARE

Earnings per share - basic
Earning after taxation 608,692 359,967

Numbers in '000'

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 50,160 50,160

Rupees

Earnings per share - basic 12.14 7.18

Diluted earnings per share

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earning per share of the Company, since there were no potential
ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024.

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 28 252,206 281,247
Short term borrowings - running finance 10 (334,412) (685,513)
(82,206) (404,266)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment i.e. sale and
manufacturing of cement. The entity-wide disclosures required by IFRS 8 'Operating Segments' are given
below:

(a) Revenue from sale of cement represents 100% (2024 : 100%) of the total revenue of the Company.
(b) 98% (2024: 99%) gross sales of the Company were made to customers based in Pakistan.

(c) AsatlJune 30,2025 and June 30, 2024 all non-current assets of the Company were located in Pakistan.
(d) Revenue earned from two major customers having sales excluding sales tax and federal excise duty

of more than 10% of total sales amounted to Rs. 2,818.98 million (2024: Rs. 2,698.56 million). The

major customer resides in Pakistan.
=27
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REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements in respect of remuneration, including
benefits, to the Chief Executive Officer, Directors and executives of the Company are given below:

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Director Director
Chief Non- Executives Chief Non- Executive
Executive Executive Executive Executive  Executive Executive

Rupees in '000'

Managerial remuneration 74,121 26,276 - 300,227 40,356 - - 270,813
Retirement benefits - 1,812 - 15,332 - - 15,240
Reimbursable perquisites 6,676 1,630 - 16,348 2,284 - - 15,162
Meeting fee - - 300 - - - 340 -
80,797 29,718 300 331,907 42,640 - 340 287,495
Number of persons 1 1 5 70 1 - 6 62

The Chief Executive, and certain Executives are provided with the use of Company cars and the operating
expenses are borne by the Company to the extent of their entitlement.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of Frontier Papers Products (Private) Limited, Fecto Cement Nooriabad
(Private) Limited, key management personnel of the Company, directors and their close family members
and staff provident fund. Transactions entered into, and balances held with, the related parties during
the year other than those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

Name of the related party Basis of relationship Particulars 2025 2024
with the party Rupees

Purchases made during the year 650,817 743,553

Payments made during the year 696,525 715,900

Payable against purchases 29,736 75,443

Frontier Paper Products Associate Loan repaid during the year - 50,905
(Private) Limited Interest charged on loan 3,388 10,774
Interest outstanding at year end 1,144 4,050

Loan outstanding at the end of the year 19,990 19,990

Staff retirement benefit plan -  Other related party Contribution for the year 32,505 29,120
Provident fund Balance payable at year end - 5,351

CORRECTION OF PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS
Recognition of Income from Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)

In the financial year ended June 30, 2022, M/s. Silk Bank Limited suspended the payment of markup on
its Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) held by the Company, pursuant to clause 28 of the trust deed executed
between the two parties. This suspension was triggered by a Lock-in Event (LIE) under the State Bank
of Pakistan’s Basel Ill Implementation (BPRD Circular No. 06 of 2013), which restricts redemption of
principal or payment of markup if such actions would create or increase a shortfall in the issuer’s Minimum
Capital Requirement (MCR) or Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR).
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Although the Lock-in Event occurred in August 2021, the Company continued to recognize markup income
until June 30, 2023, and reported both markup receivable and principal as current assets. This was based
on management’s expectation that the lock-in clause would be lifted once Silk Bank’s capital ratios
improved, supported by its ongoing banking operations and the launch of REIT projects approved by the
Commission. In the year ended June 30, 2024, management reassessed these balances, reclassified the
principal and markup to non-current assets, and did not record any impairment loss on the investment.
However, markup income for 2024 on the said investment was not accrued.

In the financial year ended June 30, 2025, Silk Bank was acquired by United Bank Limited (UBL), leading
to the deactivation of the lock-in clause. Following this development, partial redemption of principal was
received in May 2025, and the remaining principal along with accrued markup was realized in August
2025. In light of these subsequent events, the Company determined that the non-recognition of impairment
was appropriately accounted for however the markup income was not recorded. As the effect of this
error is material, the correction has been applied retrospectively in the financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of applicable accounting standards.

Accounting for Investment in Frontier Papers Products (Private) Limited

In 2019, the Company made an investment in 15 million unquoted ordinary shares of M/s. Frontier Papers
Products (Private) Limited (FPPL), its associated company in terms of section 2(4) of the Companies Act,
2017), at a par value of Rs. 10 each. This investment gives the Company 49.21% voting power in FPPL.
Mr. Mohammad Yasin Fecto holds the remaining voting power (i.e. 50.79%) in FPPL and also exercises
control over the Company (by virtue of his majority shareholding in the Company). The Company, in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9 Financial Instruments, elected
to designate the investment at fair value through other comprehensive income since it is in the nature
of a long-term strategic investment made with a view to further strengthen the existing customer-supplier
relationship with FPPL.

However, The Company received a Show Cause Notice from SECP wherein it required the Company, to
recognize Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited ("FPPL") as an associated company and follow the
equity method of accounting. Based on this notice and subsequent order from SECP has adopted the
equity method of accounting to treat its investment in FPPL. The Company, has filed an appeal against
this order with the Commission and the matter is currently pending before the SECP Appellate Tribunal.

Accordingly, in these financial statements, all the above restatements have been made retrospectively.

In these financial statements, equity method has been applied retrospectively in accordance with the
requirements of the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors' and all the corresponding figures affected thereby have been restated. Further,
since these restatements have material effects on the statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the earliest period presented (i.e. June 30, 2023), the said statement has also been presented in these
financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements'.
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The retrospective effects on the corresponding figures presented in these financial statements are as follows:

Effects on the statement of financial position

Assets

Loans, advances, deposits,
prepayments and other receivable

Long term investments

Deferred taxation

Liabilities
Deferred taxation

Share capital and reserves

Unappropriated profits

Share of other comprehensive
income of associate

Surplus on revaluation of
investment in unquoted shares

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
As previously As As previousy As
reported restated Change reported restated Change
---- (Rupees in ‘000’)
44,721 68,465 23,744 68,911 68,911 -
327,720 362,834 35,114 401,511 345,732 (55,779)
- - - 113,586 157,257 43,671
88,006 65,734 22,272 - - -
2,755,559 2,891,239 135,680 2,438,236 2,531,271 93,035
- (22) (22) - 1,776 1,776
54,527 - (54,527) 106,919 - (106,919)

Effects on the statement of profit or loss / statement of comprehensive income

Sales revenue - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Distribution costs

Finance costs
Other expenses

Operating profit

Other income

Share of profit of associate
Profit before levies and taxation
Levies

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Earning per share - basic and diluted

Increase in other comprehensive income

Increase in total comprehensive income

For the year ended June 30, 2024

As As
previously restated Change
reported
------------------- (Rupees) -------------------
10,908,118 10,908,118 -
(9,478,553) (9,478,553) -
1,429,565 1,429,565 -
(346,335) (346,335) -
(107,138) (107,138) -
(453,473) (453,473) -
(276,174) (276,174) -
(2,953) (2,953) -
(279,127) (279,127) -
696,965 696,965 -
91,337 115,080 23,743
- 18,901 18,901
788,302 830,946 42,644
(118,174) (118,174) -
670,128 712,772 42,644
(352,805) (352,805) -
317,323 359,967 42,644
--------------------- (Rupees) -----------=--mmemueem

6.33 7.18 0.85
50,594
93,238
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44, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
4.1 Financial risk analysis

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of

the Company's risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its

use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

44.1.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation.

A financial asset is regarded as credit impaired as and when it falls under the definition of a 'defaulted'
financial asset. For the Company’s internal credit management purposes, a financial asset is considered

as defaulted when it is past due for 90 days or more.

The Company writes off a defaulted financial asset when there remains no reasonable probability of
recovering the carrying amount of the asset through available means.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum
amount exposure amount exposure

Rupees in 000
At amortised cost

- Long term deposits 10,901 10,901 10,101 10,101
-Long term loans and advance 6,196 6,196 5,847 5,847
-Trade debts (@) 569,636 569,636 478,780 478,780
-Investment in TFC 49,930 49,930 99,920 99,920
-Short term loan to a related party 19,990 19,990 19,990 19,990
-Loans, deposit and other receivable 5,364 5,364 66,530 66,530
-Bank balances (b) 251,355 251,355 280,272 280,272

913,372 913,372 961,440 961,440

Note (a) - Credit risk exposure on trade debts

To reduce the exposure to credit risk the Company has developed a policy of obtaining advance payments
from its customers. Except for customers relating to the Government and certain small and medium sized
enterprises, the management strictly adheres to this policy. For any balances receivable from such small
and medium sized enterprises, the management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards
them and makes provisions against those balances considered doubtful of recovery.
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As of the reporting date, the ageing analysis of trade debts was as follows:

1-90 days
More than 90 days

June 30, 2025
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June 30, 2024

Gross carrying Provision for Gross Provision for
amount expected carrying expected
credit amount credit
losses losses
565,977 - 463,438 -
4,769 1,110 16,452 - 1,110
570,746 1,110 479,890 1,110

Note (b) - Credit risk exposure on bank balances

The Company's credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably
high credit ratings. As of the reporting date, the external credit ratings of the Company's bankers were
as follows:

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——
Short term rating
AAA 207,795 -
AA+ 7,765 -
AA 78 -
Al+ 6 237,243
A-1+ - 10,203
Al - 25,712
A-2 - 10
A-1 7,093 7,104
A+ 28,618 -
251,355 280,272

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into
with the same party, or when counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments
affecting a particular industry. As of the reporting date, the Company was exposed to the following
concentrations of credit risk:

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024

Total % of total Total % of toal
exposure Concentration exposure exposure Concentration exposure
---- (Rupees in ‘000’)
Trade debts 569,636 506,800 89% 478,780 418,785 87%
Investment in TFC 49,930 49,930 100% 99,920 99,920 100%
Accrued markup 5,364 2,842 53% 55,530 51,479 100%
Short term loan to a
related party 19,990 19,990 100% 19,990 19,990 100%
Bank balances 251,355 195,101 78% 280,272 262,222 94%
774,663 852,396
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44.1.2  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected
or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due.
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The following are the
contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments:

June 30, 2025
Carrying Contractual Six months Six to twelve  Oneto five More than
amount cash flows or less months years five years
---- (Rupees in ‘000’)

Long term financing 757,091 925,405 102,814 96,602 695,073 30,916
Lease liability 15,651 17,422 13,071 4,190 161 -
Short term borrowings-
secured 384,412 384,412 384,412 - - -
Accrued markup 6,917 6,917 6,917 - - -
Trade and other payables 1,014,995 1,014,995 1,014,995 - - -
2,179,066 2,349,151 1,522,209 100,792 695,234 30,916

June 30, 2024
Carrying Contractual Six months Six to twelve  One to five  More than
amount cash flows or less months years five years
---- (Rupees in ‘000’)

Long term financing 940,546 1,245,161 147,211 141,028 844,381 112,541
Lease liability 39,620 46,463 5,597 22,859 18,007 -
Short term borrowings-
secured 735,513 735,513 735,513 - - -
Accrued markup 38,699 38,699 38,699 - - -
Trade and other payables 1,422,058 1,422,058 1,422,058 - - -
3,176,436 3,487,894 2,349,078 163,887 862,388 112,541

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis
of mark-up rates effective as at June 30, 2025 (and includes both principal and interest payable thereon).

44.1.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk.

(a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign Currency risk arises mainly where receivables and
payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will quctua;ce
<€ 7‘0
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because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short and
long term borrowings from banks and term deposits with banks. At the balance sheet date the interest
rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments was as follows:

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000—

Financial assets

Variable rate instruments

Bank balances - saving and deposit accounts 146,755 191,708
Short term loan to related party 19,990 19,990
Investment in TFC 49,930 99,920

Financial liabilities

Variable rate instruments

Long term financing - Term Finance Il - 101,441
Lease liability 15,651 17,281
Short term borrowings - secured 384,412 735,513

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the profit or loss
and equity of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased/increase profit
before tax by Rs. 1.83 million (2024: Rs. 5.43 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for last
year.

Price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in the market prices (other than those arising from interest/ mark up rate
risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar financial instruments traded in the market. As
at June 30, 2025, the Company was not exposed any price risk.
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45 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES
45.1 Financial assets:
At amortized cost

Long term deposits

Long term loans and advances
Investment in TFC

Trade debts

Short term loan to a related party
Loans, deposit and other receivable
Cash and bank balances

45.2 Financial liabilities:
At amortized cost

Long term financing - secured
Lease liability

Trade and other payables
Short term borrowings
Accrued mark-up

46. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Annual Report 2025

Note 2025

Rupees in ‘000

(Restated)

2024

2.

10,901 10,101

6,196 5,847

49,930 99,920

569,636 478,780
19,990 19,990

5,364 66,530

252,206 281,247
914,223 962,415

Note 2025 2024

Rupees in ‘000——

757,091 940,546
15,651 39,620
1,014,995 1,422,058
384,412 735,513
6,917 38,699
2,179,066 3,176,436

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements approximate

their fair values.

The Company measures fair value of all assets and liabilities using the following fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).
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Fair values of assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices. For all other
assets the Company determines fair values using valuation techniques unless the instruments do not
have a market \ quoted price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

The table below analyses the assets measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period by the level
in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

June 30, 2025
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Rupees in '000'

Investment in privately placed TFCs - 49,930 -
Investment property - - 336,500
June 30, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Rupees in '000'

Investment in privately placed TFCs - 99,920 -

Investment property - - 286,025

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The management's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The management closely monitors
the return on capital along with the level of distributions to ordinary shareholders. The management
seeks to maintain a balance between higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirement.

Following is the quantitative analysis of what the Company manages as capital:

Note 2025 2024
Rupees in ‘000——
Borrowing:
Long term financing 757,091 940,546

Shareholders' equity:

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 501,600 501,600
General reserve 550,000 550,000
Unappropriated profit 3,499,930 2,891,238

4,551,530 3,942,838
Total capital managed by the Company 5,308,621 4,883,384
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RECLASSIFICATION OF CORRESPONDING FIGURES

In these financial statements, the following corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified,
for the purposes of comparison and better presentation.

Reclassified from component Reclassified to component Note Rupees
Raw and packing material consumed Packing material consumed 30.1.2 594,988
(Cost of sales) (Cost of sales)

Raw and packing materials consumed Closing work-in-process

(Cost of sales) (Cost of sales) 30.1 8,613
Raw Material Work-in-process 22 8,613
(Stock in trade) (Stock in trade)

Capital Spares Stores - in hand 21 16,642
(Property, plant And equipment) (Stores and spares)

GENERAL

Material non adjusting events after the reporting date

After the year end, the Company has declared three ex gratia bonuses for each employee. All employees
that were in service for the financial year 2024-25 and were still in service till August 2025.

During the year, the Company was approached by a prospective buyer expressing interest in acquiring
the land of the Company classified as investment property. In this regard, the buyer has deposited token
money. The proposal will be discussed in the Board meeting and if deemed feasible shall be recommended
for the shareholders’ approval in the upcoming AGM.

Investments made by the provident fund

The investments out of the provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section
218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

2025 2024
Metric Tons
Plant capacity and actual production
Production capacity - Ordinary Portland Cement (OPC) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Production capacity - Clinker 900,000 900,000
Actual production - Ordinary Portland Cement (OPC) 713,739 724,209
Actual production - Clinker 612,026 651,048

The present normal capacity of the Company's manufacturing facility is to produce 3,000 metric tons of
Clinker per day. The above disclosed annual production capacity of 900,000 metric tons of Clinker is
based on 300 operating days a year.
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Actual production is less than the installed capacity due to planned maintenance shut down and gap
between market demand and supply.
2025 2024

Number of employees

Total number of employees as at June 30 337 330
Average number of employees during the year 334 333
Date of authorization of these financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in their
meeting held on September 25, 2025.

Level of rounding

Figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.
MOHAMMED YASIN FECTO ROHAIL AJMAL ABDUL WAHAB

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED .
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BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST

Ballot paper for voting through post to be held on Monday, October 27, 2025, at 12.00 noon at Southend Club situated at,
24th Street, Khayaban-e-Rahat, Phase VI, Defence Housing Authority, Karachi, as well as through video link.

Contact Details and email address of the Chairman at which the duly filled in ballot paper may be sent:
The Chairman, Fecto Cement Limited, Plot no. 60-C, Khayaban-e-Shahbaz, DHA Phase VI, Karachi. Attention of the Company Secretary
Email address: agm@fectogroup.com

Name of shareholder/joint shareholders

Registered Address

Number of Ordinary Shares held

Folio Number/CDC Account Number

CNIC No./Passport No. (in case of
foreigner) (copy to be attached)

Additional Information and enclosures
(in case of representative of body corporate,
corporation and Federal Government.)

Election of Directors: I/we hereby cast my/our votes in favor of following candidates as indicated below:

S.

No.

Nature of Description of Special Resolution

No. of
ordinary
shares for
which votes
casted

1/We assent
to the
Special

Resolution
(FOR)

1/We assent
to the
Special
Resolution
(AGAINST)

Agenda no.5: To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification, the
following resolution as special resolutions under Section 183(3)(a) of Companies Act,
2017.

RESOLVED THAT the offer received from Faisal Town private limited for the purchase of
the Company’s Investment property, comprising land measuring 124.625 kanals situated
near Islamabad International Airport, Airport Avenue Road, Laundi, Thalian, Rawalpindi,
at a price of PKR 3,200,000 per kanal, aggregating to total consideration of PKR
398,800,000/-, be and is hereby accepted.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director, Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Company be and hereby authorized to negotiate,
finalize and execute all necessary documents and agreements including any amendments
thereto in relation to the foregoing resolution including agreement to sell, and other
related documents and including all other matters incidental thereto, and carry out any
other act or step which may be ancillary or incidental to do the above and necessary
to fully achieve the object of the foregoing resolution. Board is also authorized to sub
delegate all or any of the aforesaid authorizations to one or more of the members of
the board or management.

Signature of shareholder(s)

Place: Date:

NOTES/PROCEDURE FOR SUBMISSION OF BALLOT PAPER:

1.

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

Duly filled postal ballot should be sent to The Chairman, Fecto Cement Limited, Plot # 60-C, Khayaban-e-Shahbaz, Phase VI, Defence
Housing Authority Karachi-75500.

Copy of CNIC/Passport (in case of foreigner) should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.

Postal ballot forms should reach chairman of the meeting on or before October 24, 2025 during working hours. Any postal ballot
received after this date will not be considered for voting.

Signature on postal ballot should match with signature on CNIC/Passport (in case of foreigner).

Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated and over written ballot paper will be rejected.

Ballot Paper has also been placed at the website of the Company www.fectogroup.com. Members may download the ballot paper
from the website or use original/photocopy published in newspapers.
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The Company Secretary

The Fecto Cement Limited

Plot # 60-C, Khayaban-e-Shahbaz
Phase VI, Defence Housing Authority
Karachi-75500

1/We
of (full address)

being member of FECTO CEMENT LIMITED holding ordinary shares
as per Share Register Folio No. and/or CDC Participant I.D.No. and
Sub-Account No. hereby appoint

of (full address)

or failing him/her

of (full address) who is

also a member of Fecto Cement Limited, as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our

behalf at annual general meeting of the company to be held on Monday, October 27, 2025 at 12:00 noon and/or any adjournment

thereof.
Signature this year 2025.
(day) (date, month)
Witnesses:
1. Signature:
Name
Address Signature
CNICNo.
2. Signature:
Signature of members
Name should match with the
Address specimen signature
registered with the
CNICNo. company.
Important:
1. In order to be effective, this form of proxy duly completed, stamped, signed and witnessed along with power of

attorney, or other instruments (if any), must be deposited at the registered office of the company at Plot # 60-C,
Khayaban-e-Shahbaz, Phase VI, Defence Housing Authority, Karachi-75500 at least 48 hours before the time of the
meeting.

2. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one form of proxy are deposited by a member with the
company, all such forms of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

3. In case of proxy for an individual beneficial owner of shares from CDC, attested copies of beneficial owner's computerized
national identity card (CNIC) or passport, account and participant's ID numbers must be deposited along with the
form of proxy. In case of proxy for representative of corporate members from CDC, board of directors'resolution and
power of attorney and the specimen signature of the nominee must be deposited along with the form of proxy. The
proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or passport at the time of meeting.

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED [ |




Flot = 60-C, Khavaban-e-Shabbaz, Phae VI, Defence Housing Authority
Karachi-75500, Pakistan.
Phome Nos. (=92 21) 35248921-24 | Fax: (= 92 21) 35248925
webzite: www fectogroup.com




